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P&O Annual Report

Group strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2016

The direclors present their strategic report on the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Principal Group activities

The principal activity of The Peninsular and Oriental Steam Navigation Company (*P&0"} and of its subsidiaries
(referred to as "the Group®) in the year was the operation and development of container terminals and related
logistical operations worldwide (*Ports”). Our aim is lo enhance the supply chain efficlency of cur customers by
affactively handling container, bulk and general cargo across our network.

Review of operations and results

The results of the Group are set out in detail on pages 14 to 19 and in the accompanying notes. The financial
position of the Parent Company Is set out in delail on page 76 and in the accompanying notes.

The Group's Key financial and other performance indicators during the year were as follows:

2016 - 2015 - sichdnge

Ports — Gross Contalner throughput (TEUs 000} 31,398.7 29,728.0 56
Profit from continuing operations before taxation (£'m) 239.0 193.5 235
Profil for the year fram conlinuing operations (£'m) 1763 137.3 27.7
EBITDA (Adjusted) (£'m)* 460.2 340.6 3456
Return on Capital Employed 6.27% 4.12% -
Net Assets (E'm) 2,760.2 3,660.3 (24.9)
Met Debt to equity ratio 45.0% 22.9% -
Net cash Inftow from operating activities 216.5 2154 05
Net cash {oulflow) from investing aclivities (155.1) (544.2) (71.5)
Net cash {outlow)inflow from financing aclivities (19.8) 359.7 {105.5)

*Earnings balere s eparately d'sclosed items, interest, lax, depreciation and  mortzation (*Adjusted EBITDA"}

Gross throughput of 31.4 million twenty foot equivalent units (TEW's) was 5.6% more than last year mainly due to
sironger performances across the Asia Pacific and India Sub-conlinent regions.

Profit before taxation for the year ended 31 December 2016 was £239m up 23.5% [rom the prior year profit
before {axalion of £193.5m. Excluding the impact of any separately disclosed items, profit bafore taxation was
£284rm compared to a prior year profit before taxation of £487.7m. The increase in the profit before taxation was
driven by Asia Pacific end Indian sub-continent segment primarily dus to much stronger perfarmance from Ching,
India and Pakistan. Australia and Americas segment has reporied stronger performance relative to prior periad
mainly due to robust resulis from Argentina.

Profil for the year was £175.3m up by 27.7% from the prior year profit of £137.3m mainly due to stronger
performance in Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent segment and increase tn profit in Australia and Americas
segmant.

Net assets at 31 Dacember 2016 of £2,750.2m were down by 24.9% when compared to £3,660.3m at
31 December 2015, the movements are detailed in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and include
the payment of £1,000m dividend in the year.

Net debt to equity increased to 45% at 31 December 2016 from 22.9% at 31 December 2015, as an intarim

dividend of £1,000m was peid during 2016. Net debt is defined as all interest bearing external liabilities less cash
and cash equivalents.

Net cash inflow frarm operating activities was marginally higher than the previous financtal year principally due to
increased EBITDA, which was partly offset by unfavourable movement in working capital.

Cash outfow from investing activities was £389.1m lower than the previous financial yaar mainly due to higher
dividends from equity accounted investees in China and Indonesia in 2016 and acquisition of port of Prince
Rupert in August 2015,

Cash oulflow from financing activities was £379.6m higher as compared to last year as a dividend of £1,000m
was adjusted against loans recaivable from parent underiakings.
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{continued}

On 14 November 2016, Lhe Group received 81.63% ownership of India Gateway Terminal, Cochin, India and
28% ownership in Visakha Container Terminal, Visakhapatnam, India from DPW FZE through a gift deed for nil
consideration.

Principal risks and uncertainties

During 2016, the Group continued to monitor and review the principal business performance risks that could
malerially affect the Group's business, financial condition and reputation. White other risks exist outside those
listed, we have made a conscious effort to disclose those of greatest importance to our businsss. The Group's
risk management process aims to provide reasonable assurance that we undersland, monitor and manage the
principal uncertainties. A summary of the Group's principal risks, the nature and management of these risks are
further described below.

Macroeconomic instability

Risk Description and Impact: - Container handling carrelates with GDP growth of the global economy. This
correlation was historically higher at a rate of 2 to 1, but today this rate is closer o 1 to 1. Market conditions in
many of the geographies where we operate can be challenging due 1o macroeconomic or geopolitical issues,
which can potentially impact our volume grewth and profitability.

Risk Management: - Our business remains focused on origin and destination cargo which is less susceptible
1o economic instability. Although our focus on faster growing emerging markets may result in volume volatility in
the short term, we believe that the medium to long term prospects remain solid. We aim to deliver high levels of
servica to meet our customers’ expectations and continue to proactively manage costs.

We have a wall-diversified global portfolio of investments across a number of jurisdictions, spreading our
concentration risk due to an even geographical spread of our business activity.

Industry Capacity

Risk Description and Impact; - The ulilisation of our operations is influenced by any avallable capacity to
handle container volumes. In some jurisdictions port authorities tender many projects simullanecusly and create
capacity beyond medium term demand, which will lead to overcapacity in that marke!l. An increase in capacity
can lead to intensified competition between port operators, resulting in weak pricing power, loss of revenue and
low return on invesiment.

Risk Management: - Barriers to entry are typically high in the container terminal industry due to the ¢apital
intansive nature of the business. Our focus on gateway locations means we are usually the temninal of choice.
We bring on capacity in line with demand with a view to avoiding overcapacity. Tha Group's nvestment in deep-
sea capacity allows us to handle ulira-large vessels and offers a compelitive advantage.

Major Projects — Development and planning

Risk Description and Impact: - Major projects contribute significantly to reshaping our portfolio and delivering
our stralegy. We are involved in number of high-vaiue, fong term projects that can take months or years to
complete. These projects due to their nature, are exposed to geopolitical events, forces of nature, unforeseen site
conditions, technology developmant and equipment deliveries, amongst other external factors which can result in
delays or cost overruns. Failure to deliver these major projecls can expose the Group to the risk of raduced
profitability and potential losses.

Risk Management: - Our Pre-qualification criteria and process continues to be enhanced, wilh comprehensive
information being collected and managed to make sure our contraclor list Is solid and companies are categorised
according o their aclual skills and recent performance on other cantracts. Relationships with top-tier vendars are
constantly developed and managed, securing top management commitment from Confractors {0 our projects.
Procurement processes in place make sure conlracts are rigorously negotiated lo mitigate any Identified project
sisks. Project risks are conslantly assessed, mitigated and managed by the Project Management Depariment
{“PMD") during the project planning and execution stage.

Several levels of approval are in place for the large-scale contracts up to the level of our Board. In addition to the
involvement of highly skilled project management individuals on each project, more altention is being placed to

2




P&O Annual Report

Group strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2016

{continued)

the planning stage of projects, to avoid and address eventual project liabilities, following PMD procedures and
best practices of project management standards. Sfrategic equipment procurement and implementation controfs
are in place throughout the duration of projects and clear lines of responsibility assigned to the Project
Implementation Team.

Whare muliilateral or bank finance is a seurce of funding, the projects are required to meet internationally
established projest financing requirements. Where appropriate, financing packages are structured and covenants
set to ensure sufficient headroom to accommodate non-material delays.

Geopolitical

Risk Description and Impact: - The Group seeks new opportunities and operates across a large number of
jurisdictions, resulting in exposure fo a broad spectrum of economies, political and social frameworks. Political
instability, changes to the regulatory environment or taxation, international sanctions, expropriation of property,
civit slrife and acts of war can disrupt the Group's operations, increase cosls, of negatively impact existing
operations, service, revenues and volumes.

Risk Management: - We have a well-diversified global portfolio of invesiments across a number of geographical
jurisdictions which spreads our risk. We also actively maintain a mix between investing in emerging markets and
developed markets to balance our risk return profile. Qur focus on the more resilient origin and destination cargo
also lowers the risk of volatility. Our experienced business development team underiakes inilial due diligence and
we analyse currént and emerging issues and mainlain business continuity plans to respond to threats and
safeguard our operations and assels.

Authoritative and timely intervention is made al both natianal and International levels in response to legisiative,
fiscaf and regulatory propusals that we feel are disproportionate and not in our interests. Ongoing security
assessments and continuous monitoring of geopelitical davelopments alang with engagement with local
authorities and joint venture partners, ensures we are well positioned to respond to changes in political
environments.

IT Systems, infrastructure Failure and Cyber Threat

Risk Description and lmpact: - Our business and operations are increasingly dependent on information
technology to drive the efficiencies of its operalions, ensure integrity in information and business workflows,
integration to stakehalders including customers and government autharities, ensuring that port aperations and its
machinery operate continuously. As a logistics company, the use of IT applications is core to our competitive
advantage. Wilh the increasing pace of technological innovation and change, the use of social media and the
evolving sophistication of cyber thrests, corporates are targets for malicious and unauthorised altempts to access
their IT systems for information and intelligence. Our Group could be compromised by an incident that breaches
our IT security. This coutd result in liabilities, including claims, loss of revenue, litigation and harm {o the Group's
reputation.

Risk Management: - We regularly review and evaluate all software, applications, systems, Infrastructure and
security tools to ensure that the best available software and systems are installed and used by our Group. All
software and systems are upgraded or patched regularly to ensure that we minimised our vulnerabilities. Each of
our business units has an IT disaster recovery plan.

Our security policias and Infrastructure tools are updated reguiarly or replaced regularly o keep pace of changing
and growing computer threats. We have online training coursas for our employees for training on the proper use
of our computer systems and computer securily. Our security Infrastructure is updated regularly and connectivity
{o our partners’ systems is monitored and logged.

Customer Consolidation

Risk Description and inpact: - Our major and middle-tier cuslomers are expected to continue fo form alliances
and may change their stralegy on preferred ports and hubs which could also lead to downward pressure on
tariffs.

Risk Management: - We focus on high levels of customer service and develop sustainable, high-value and
trusted customer relationships throughout our porlfolic. We have a customer conlact engagement strategy in
place. Senior execulive sponsors are in constant dialogue with our customers and we maintain a watching briaf
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{continued)
on all markets. We operate customer engagement projects to iImprove and extend supply chain relationships. We
remain focused on origin and destination cargo, which is less affected by compelition than transshipment cargo.

Safety Risks

Risk Description and Impact: - The industry we operate in has a great inleraction between people and heavy
equipment/loads, which expose us to a range of health and safety hazards. The potential impacts could include
harm to our people, regulatory action, legal liahiliy, increased cosls and damage to our reputation. Our ultimate
goal is zero harm to our employees, third parties and communities near our operations.

Risk Management: - Our Board of Directors is fufly committed lo creating a safety culture throughout the Group,
We regularly monitor the implementation of our safety strategy at our terminals, which includes employee
training, regular audits and management objectives in refation to the safety of our people. We continue to record
and report on all safety impacls at business units to the Board and senior management. This includes collecting,
analysing, reparling and monitoring data on a monthly basis in order to measure the safely performance of our
business units.

We investigate all incidents and have a working group in place to highlight trends, reduce risk factors and identify
and implement measures aimed at eliminating future incidents. Terminal management is responsible for local
terminal safety risks and is supported by safely guides, operational manuals, procedures and oversight from our
local, regional and Global Safely teams, which co-ordinate consistent approaches to safety risks. A Vendor Code
of Conduct has been established to ensure contractors selection criteria is aligned with our safety policies prior to
commencing work on our terminals.

Legal and Regulatory

Risk Descrlption and Impact: - Qur Group is subject to detailed local, regional and global laws and regulations
across different jurisdictions. These laws and regutations are becoming more complex and increasingly stringent
and are subject lo various legal and regulatory obligations. We are expanding geographically and therefore we
are exposed lo more and more laws and regulations when operating our businesses. New legislation and other
evolving practices could impact our operations and Increase the cost of compliance, For example, the UK Bribery
Act applies to afl our oparations worldwide. We need to constantly monitor compliance on our existing operations
and business development opporlunities. Another example is competition law and merger control rutes which are
applicable in aimost afl jurisdiclions. We must ensure that we operate in compfiance with these rules. This is even
more critical in our industry that has few players, few competilors, and few customers. Regulators across the
world exchange dala and scrutinise companies on a globat level. Failure to comply with legistation could fead to
substantial financial penalties, disruption to business, parsonal and corporale liabilily and lass of reputalion.

Risk Management: - The Group monitors changes to regulafions across its portfolio to ensure that the effect of
any changes are minimised and compliance is continually managed. Comprehensive policies, procedures and
training are In place to promote legal and regulatory compliance. Ongoing dialogue with our external lawyers to
malntain knowledge of relevant iegal developmenls in the markets where we oparate. Ongoing dialogue with our
Regions to proaclively be aware of changes in the way business/operations are conducted and be in a position to
advise accordingly,

Business Ethics

Risk Description and Impact: - Acling in an ethical manner, consistent with the expectations of customars,
consumers and other stakeholders, is essential to protect the reputation of Group and our corporate
perfermancs. Despite our commilment to being an ethical business and the steps we take to adhere to this
commitment, a fisk remains that behaviour or events will occur that fall short of our expected standards, We
comply with a wide range of local and inlernational faws, e.g. anli-corruption and bribery laws and the Modern
Stavery Act. As our business spreads geographically, we are increasingly operating in countries identified as
having a higher risk of exposure o thase laws. We also have to enswe compliance with trade sanctions, and
import and expoerl controls. Failure by our empleyees or agents fo comply with these regulations coutd result in
substantial penalties, criminat prosecution and significant damage to our reputation. This could in turn impact our
future revenue and cash flow. Allegations of corruplion or bribery or viotation of sanclions regulations could also
lead fo reputation and brand damage with investors, regulators and customers.

Risk Management: - Group has a Code of Ethics and Anti-Bribery Policy in place, with a zero tolerance
approach to bribery and fraud and has developed online training and fraud risk awareness workshops across the
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Group to raise awareness and promote compliance. We have an anti-fraud framework in place for preventing,
detecting and responding to frauds o meel the stringent requirements of the UK Bribery Act. This is particuarly
focused on higher risk regions to ensure the Group's policies are understood and enforced.

We have a whistleblowing hotline for reporting any concerns. These are investigated and reported lo the Audit
Commiltee on a quarterly basis. We provide new starters and existing employees with training on anti-bribery and
corruption as part of the induction process. We have a vendor code of conduct to ensure vendors comply with
these laws and a gift and hospitality policy for all employees.

Employee Attraction and Retention

Risk Description and Impact: - Our people are fundamental to the long term success and growth of our Group.
The atiraction, retention, development and succession of senior management and individuals with key skills are
critical success factors in the achieverment of our strategy. Failure o attract or retain these employees could
result In increased costs to the Group and affect our business continuity and productivity levels.

Risk Management: - This risk is reducing as we continue to invest in our people and their performance.
Retention sirategies are in place for identified scarce skills. We promote a safe working environment for our
employees and operate a global “health and wellbeing® programme. We continuously monitor and benchmark our
remuneration packages in order to attract and retain employees of a suitable calibre and skill set. The Group
develops and delivers training programmes across all lavels, focused on improving operational and manageriat
compelancies.

We partner with some of the most reputable learning institutions, such as London Business Schoot and Harvard,
for the development of our leaders. We have enlered into agreements wilh the leading recruitment and search
firms to support us as and when needed. Effective performance management remains a high priority and is
regularly monilored across the Group. We have in place a succession planning strategy for critical roles in the
business, which forms part of our Talent Management process. Stafl turnover rates are manilored and are
currently stable.

Labour Unrest

Risk Description and Impact: - Labour sirikes and unrest or other industrial refations disputes pose a risk to our
operationat and financial results. Unions are now communicating trans-nationally and coordinating actions
against multi-national companies. Dealing with issues in isolation is therefore becoming more challenging. Some
of our Group’s employees are represented by labour Unions under collective labour agreaments. The Group may
not ba able to renegotiate agreements satisfactorily when they expire and may face Industrial action. In addition,
labour agreements may not be able to prevent a sirike or work stoppage and [abour disputes may arise even in
circumstances where the Group's employees are not represented by labour Unions.

Risk Management: - We have an engagement stralegy with unions and employees in those areas most affected
by employee disputes. This includes multi-year agreements and clearly assigned responsibilities for maintaining
close relationships with unions focally, nationally, and internationally,. We are proactive and timely in our
rasponses lo the needs of the unions. A senior management represeniative holds a Chairperson role on the
European Works Council, which provides a farum to interact directly with union representatives on a timely and
continuous basis.

We continue to moniter operational downtime ariging from local disputes. We conduct employee engagement
surveys every two yoars, with a formal process for following up on employee concerns. We continue to develop a
response capabliity to address and offset the impact of work stoppages as a result of labour disputes within the
local regulatory and legal framework we operale under.

Environmental - Ciimate Change

Risk Dascription and Impact: - Our operalional activities are driven by the consumption aof fossil fugls and
electricity which, in turn, emit pollutants including greenhouse gases. The Group's aclivilies and operations are a
crucial link in the supply chain of goods and we recognise that our Group has a responsibility to reduce
emissions. Currently, there are numerous national and regional reguiations and laws governing environmenial
protection Issues such as carbon emissions. A breach in any of these regulations can result in the Group facing
regulatory action and lega! liability, including penalties and remediation obligations, increased costs and damage
to our reputation.
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Risk Management: - We have a dedicated leam responsible for continually reviewing regulatory risks and which
actively engages with policymakers and governments to assist in managing and mitigating any risks associated
with regulatory changes. Operalional terminals, executives, managers and technical leaders play an important
role in developing stralegies and actions to combat the adverse potential effects of climate change through
planning, modification of infrastructure and retrofitting, etc. We continue to monltor and report our carbon
emissions to the Board and senior management and gtobally to stockholders.

Corporate responsibility, safety and the environment

Thare are Graup policies for health, safety, welfare, environment and soclal responsibility which are
communicaled to alf staff. Each operating company is required to produce its own policles and management
systems to reflect Group policies and best industry practice in its sector of business. The Company also
ancourages the adoplion of simitar policies by its significant joint ventures and associales.

Financial risk management
The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

. Liquidity risk

. Marke! risk

. Credit risk

This section presents information about the Group's exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. Further quantitative disclosures are included
throughout the consolidated financial statements,

The Board of Directors, in conjunction with the Board of Directors of DP World Limited, the ullimate controlling
company of the Group, have oversall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
managemenl framework.

The Group's risk management policias are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. The Group, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive centrol environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Group will not be able to mest its financial obligalions as they fall due. The
Group's approach to managing liquidity Is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient cash fo
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and siressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses ar
risking damage to the Group's reputation.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates, will affect
the Group's income or the value of ils holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The Group buys and selfs derivatives and also incurs financial liabilities in order to manage market risks. All such
transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Board of Directors in the Group Treasury policy.
Generally, the Group seeks to apply hedge accounting in order to manage the volatility in the consolidated
incorne slatement.

Currency risk

The Group has exiensive overseas and inlernalional business operations and operales in a number of foreign
currencies which gives rise to {ransaclional and lransational foreign exchange risk. The foreign currencies to
which the Group is most exposed are the US Dollar, the Indian Rupes, the Canadian Dollar and the Euro. In
general, the Group's profits and stockholders’ funds benefit if these currencies are strong against Sterling.

The proportion of the Group's net opsrating assets denominated in foreign currencles is approximately 80.5%
(2015: 75.7%) with the result thal the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position and, in particular
owner's equity, can be affected by currency movements when it is retranslaled st each year end rate. The Group
partially mitigates the effect of such movements by borrowing in the same currencies as those in which the
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assets are denominated and using cross currency swaps. The impact of currency movements on operating profit
is partigily mitigated by interest costs being incutred in foreign currencies.

Exchange movements arising on foreign currency invastments are taken directly to equity.

A portion of the Group’s aclivities generate part of their revenue and Incur some costs oulside their main
functional currency. Due to the diverse number of localions in which the Group operates there is some natural
hedging that occurs within the Group. When it is considered that currency valatility could have a material impact
on the results of an operation, hedging using forward forelgn currency contracts is undertaken to reduce the
short-term effect of currency movements.

When the Group's businesses enter into capilal expenditure or [ease commitments In currencies other than their
main functional currency, these commilmants are hedged, in most instances, using forward contracts and
currency swaps in order o fix the cost when canverted lo the functional currency. The Group classifies its forward
exchange contraots hedging forecast trangactions as cash flow hedges and slates them at fair valve.

As well as the direct effect on cash flows, exchange rates also affect the Group's businesses because of their
overall economic influence. In partlcular, exchange rates affect international trade flows which impact on the
activilies of the Group.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market intarest rates relates primarily to the Group's long-term
debt obligations with a fixed/floating interest rate and bank deposits.

Approximately £324.9 million (2015: £130.7 million) of the Group’s Interest bearing loans and borrowings carry
interest at floating rates. The Group's policy is lo manage ils interest cost by entering info interest rate swap
agreements in which the Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and
variable rate Interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount. These swaps
are designated to hedge underlying debt obligations.

At 31 December 2016, after taking into account the effect of interest rate swaps, approximately 79.4% (2015: 88.2%)
of lhe Group's borrawings are at a fixed rate of interest.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer fails to meet its conlractual obligations, which
arises principally from the Group’s receivables from customers and investment securities.

Trade and other recelvables

The Group Irades only with recognised, creditworthy third parlies. It is the Group's policy that all customers who
wish to frade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures and are required to submit financial
guarantees based on their creditworthiness. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an on-going
basis with the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of
trade and other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to
individually significant exposures and a collective loss component established far Groups of similar assets in
respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identified. The collective loss allowance is determined
based on historical data of payment statistics for similar financial assets.

Other financial assets

Credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group comprises cash and cash equivalenls and certain
derivative Instruments. The Group's exposure to credil risk arises from defaull of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal 1o the carrying amount of these instruments.

The Group limits its credit risks with regard to bank deposits by dealing only with reputable barks with a minimum
credit rating of A-.

Financial guarantees
The Group's policy is to consider the provision of a financial guarantee to wholly-owned subsidiaries where there
is & commercial rationale to deo so. Guarantees may also be provided ta joint ventures and assaciales in very
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limited circumstances and always only for the Group’s share of the obligation. The provision of guaraniees
always requires the approval of management.

Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, credilor and market confidence
and o suslain fulure development of the business. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital
employed {ROCE), which the Group defines as earnings before interest and tax and before separately disclosed
items (SDI), as a percentage of total assets less current liabifities. Return on capital employed is 6.3% for the
year ended 31 December 2016 as compare to 4.1% for the year ended 31 Becember 2015.

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and
healthy capital ralios in order to supporl ils business and maximize shareholder value. The Board seeks to
maintain a balance between the higher returng that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

Neithet the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

By order of the Board

YA AN

Mohammad Al Hashlmy

Secrelary
19 June 2017
Company Number Z73
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Report of the directors

The directors present their report and accounts for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Directors
The directors of the Company who held office during the year and to the date of this report were as {ollows:

Sultan Bin Sulayemn {appointed 26 January 2016)

Jamal Majid Bin Thaniah {resigned cn 31 January 2017)
Mohammed Sharaf (resigned on 26 January 20186)
Yuvraj Narayan

Ganesh Raj Jayaraman

Anil Watts

Sarmad Qureshi

Dividends
The Company paid an interim dividend of £1,000m during 2018 {2015: Enil).

Employees

The Company s committed to keeping employees throughout the Group informed of performance, development
and progress through its established system of briefings by management, and widely distributed news and
information bulletins.

There is a European Works Council, known as the European Councll, the purpose of which is lo inform and
consult with employee representatives on {ransnational issues. Members are elected in the UK and Ireland and
either elected or appoinled, in accordance with national taws, In other countries. The Council meets twice a year.

The Company’s aim is fo meet the objectives of the code of good practice on the employment of disabled people.
Full and fair cansideration is given 1o disabled applicants for employment and training, and career development is
encouraged on the basis of aplitude and abilities. It remains Company policy to retain employees who become
disabled whilst in its service and to provide specialised fraining where appropriate.

Employees are able to share in the Group's results through performance related bonus schemas which are
widely applied in the Group.

Going concern

The Group's business aclivities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and
position are set out in the Strategic Report. In addition, note 6 to the consolidated financial statement sets out the
Group's objectives, policies and processes for managing the Group's financial risk, including capital
managemenf, and note 29 provides detaiis of the Group’s expostre lo credi risk, liquidily risk and inferest rate
rigk arising from financial instruments.

The Group has within current receivables an amount of £1,783.6m (2015 £2,602.8m) due from its intermediate
parent companies and fellow subsidiaries and believe these to be recoverable.

The board of directors remein safisfied with the Group’s funding and liquidity position. At 31 Decernber 2016, the
Group had net debt of £1,237.7m (2015; £837.9m) and had £82.6m committed borrowing facilities (2015
£244.3m). The Group generated net cash of £216.5m (2015: £215.4m) from operating aclivilies and its interest
cover for the year is 9 limes (2015: 8 times) {calculated using adjusted EBITDA to net interest expense before
separately disclosed items).

Based on the above and having made enquiries, the Directors consider that the Company and the Group have
adequate resources 1o conlinue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and therefore they consider it
appropriate to adop! the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.
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Report of the directors (continued)

Directors Indemnity Insurance
All directors are entitled 1o indernnification from the Company to the extent permilted by law against claims and
legal expenses incurred in the course of their duties.

Such qualifying third party indemnity insurance is provided and remains in force as at the data of approving the
directors’ report.

Disclosure of information to the auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are
aware, there is no relevant audil information of which the Company's auditors are unaware and each Director has
taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

Auditors

Pursuant 1o Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG
LLP will therefore continue in office.

By order of e.y%oard
M@o ammaé Al Hashimy
Secretary

19 June 2017
Company Number 273
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Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual
Report, Strategic Report, the Directors’ Report and the financial
statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the annual report, strategic report, the directors’ repor and the Group
and parent company financial statements, in accordance with applicable law and regutations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare Group and parent corpany financial statements for each financial
year. Under that law they have elected to prepare tha Group financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Slandards {IFRSs) as adopled by the European Union and applicable law and have elected
to prepare the parent company financial slatements in accordance wilh UK Accounting Standards and applicable
law {UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law, the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of their profit or loss for that
period.

In preparing each of the Group and Parent Company financial staterents, the directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
+  make judgements and estimates thal are reasonable and prudent;

« for the Group statements, state whether {hey have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU,;

« for the Parent Company financial statements, state whelther applicable UK Accounting Standards have been
followed, subjact to any materia) departures disclosed and explained in the Parent Company financial
statements; and

+ prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Group and the Parent Company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequale accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Parent Company's transaction and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Parent Company and enable them to ensure that its financial statements comply with the Companies Acl 2006.
They have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of
the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

11
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of The Peninsular and
Oriental Steam Navigation Company

We have audiled the financlal statements of The Peninsular and Oriental Steam Navigation Company for the
year ended 31 December 2016 set out on pages 14 to 106. The financia! reporling framework that has been
applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and Interational Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopled by the EU. The financial reporling framework that has been applied in
the preparation ©of the parent company financial statements is applicable law and UK Accounting Standards (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been underlaken so that we might stale lo the Company's members
those matlers we are required lo state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
Company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibifities of directors and auditoy

As explainetd more fully In the directors’ Responsibiliies Staterent set out on page 11, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair
view. Our responsibility is to audil, and express an opinion on, the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and international Standards on Auditing (UK and Irefand). Those stendards require us to comply
with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethlcal Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is provided on the Financial Reporting Council's
website at www.fre.org.ukfauditscopeukprivate.

Opinion on financial statements

In our opinion:

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the Parent Company's
affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended;

+  the Group financlal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
EU;

« the Parent company financial stalements have bean properly prepared in accordance with UK Generally
Accepted Aceounting Practics;

+ the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006,

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

fn our opinion the information given in the Strategic Report and the directors’ Report for the financial year for
which the financial statements are prepared is congistent wilh the financial statements. Based solely on the work
required to be undertaken in the course of the audit of the financial statements and from reading the Strategic
report and the Directars’ report:

- We have nol identified material misstatements in those reports; and

- In our opinfon those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2008.

12
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where ihe Companies Act 2008 requires us to report
to yau If, In our apinion:;

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been recsived from branches not visited by us; or

+ the Parent Company financial statements to be audited are not in agreemant with the accounting records
and returns; or

+ cartain disclosures of directors’ remuneration spacified by law are not made; of

¢ we have not received all the information and expianations we require for our audit.

Tom Eve (Sentor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square
Canary Wharf{
Londen E14 5GL
189 June 2017
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Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 December 2016

P&O Annual Report

£ mifion

Year ended 31 Decomber 2016

.- Yoar ended 31 Decomber 2015 -

Note Befare  Separately Tota) Before Separately Total
separately disclosed separately distiosed
distlosed Hems gsclosed items
flems irems

Group revenue 7 10294 606  1079.6 8836 49.2 9328

Cost of sales {832.9} (60.5) {683.4) {687.6) {49.2) (636.8)

Gross profit 396.2 - 396.2 286.0 - 286.0

Other operating income 7.8 1.6 9.3 34 - 34

Administrative cosis {166.4) - (186.4) (148.4) {0.4) (148.8)

Earnings from equity accounted Invesiees 7,9 100.1 (2.2) 87.9 80.2 - 80.2

Group operating profit 337.7 0.7} 3370 231.2 (0.4) 230.8

Lass on sale and termination of

businesses g {2.2) {1.6) (3.8) - {0.2) {0.2)

Profit bafors finance expense 335.5 (2.3) 333.2 231.2 (0.6) 230.6

Financa income i0 47.8 - 47.8 47.4 64 538

Finance expense 10 {98.3} {42.7) {142.0) {90.8) - (90.9)

Not finance expense {51.5) {42.7) {24.2) (43.5) 5.4 {37.1)

Profit before taxation 284.0 [45.0) 239.0 187.7 5.8 183.6

i Income tax expense 11 {63.7} - (63._7) {56.2} - (56.2)

Profit for the year . 7. 52208 (45.0)° 4763 - 1315 58 . 1373

Atirlbutable to: i ]

_Owners of the company 6.8 1184
- Non-controlling Intérasts_ ‘385 192
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2016

£ 1rifion
Nt . ame " a6
Proflt for the year 176.3 137.3
Other comprehensive incame
tems that are or may he raclassified subsequanﬂy to consolidated lncome
statement:
Effactlve portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges (18.6) 64
Foreign currency teanstation differances for foreign aperations 1261 (6.4)
Share of other comprehensive Income of equify accounted investees 6.1 0.6
Deferred tax on other camprehensive Income items 23 G0
Items thatwill na\.-er be reclass[ﬂed to consolldaled Income o B
statement: - . : '
Re-measurements of pos!-employmenl heneft abligations 24 {161.8) (3.8)
Deferred {ax on actuarial losses/ {gains) 4.6 N
Tolal other comprehensive income for the year (32.3) (7.9)
Tolal compreh,gnslve mcome for the year - 430 - 4294,
Allributable to:
. Qwnors of the ¢ompany. . . : 1023 1130
“Non-controlilng inferests . 407 . 184"
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Consolidated statement of financial position

as at 31 December 2016
£ milion
Rote_ w18 - 2008
Non;cﬁrrenl assets
Intangible asseals 12 881.9 6418
Praperty, plant and equipment 13 2,088.5 1,814.9
Invesiments in equily accounted investees 14 438.7 4455
Other investments 17 243 20.3
Trade and other recelvables 16 974 15.3
Loans to group undertakings 16 14 17.3
Deferred lax assets 15 - 0.1
3,631.9 2,964.2
Current assets
Inventorias 213 17.1
Trade and oiher receivables 16 212.7 181.0
Tax recoverable 259 16.6
Loans to group undertakings 16 1,783.6 26028
Cash and cash gquivalents 18 342.0 260.4
2,385.6 3,086.9
Total assets. - - .. - 59174 T T 8051
lNol'll;current llébil]tles 7
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 19 1,639.5 1,073.1
‘Trade and other payables 20 104.5 736
Loan from group undertakings 20 2383 281.8
Deferred tax Habiftios 16 458.7 386.7
Employee benefits 24 254.9 1221
Provisions 1.1 0.7
2,697.0 1,948.0
Gurrent liabilities
Interest bearing loans and borrowings 19 40.2 34.2
Trade and other payables 20 368.4 252.4
Income 1ax liabilitlies 70.8 811
Lean from group undertakings 20 77.4 51.8
Employee banefits 24 6.6 6.8
Provisions 16.7 18.5
§70.2 442.8
Total liabllitles 3,167.2 2,390.8
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Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

as at 31 December 2016
) £ smition
Note 2016 2015
Net assels 2,750.2 3,660.3
Equity
Issued capital 22 843.2 B843.2
Share premium 22 815.4 815.4
Other reserves 22 405.7 296.1
- Relained eamings . =", B IR A o

- T T T U R,7089.0 0 b 36302,
. Noncopholing lnterests -~ - - T g A8 304
B T T S izeez - - 36803

“Totalequlty -
- BT - 80511

Total equily and iabililies

e-d@pproved by the board of directors and sigrfed on its behalf on 18 Juna 2017 by:

Directar

The|Peninstuiar and Oriental Steam Navigalion Company — Company Number 273
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2016

. e w200
Operating activities
Profit after taxation 175.3 137.3
actﬁ%i::imems fo reconcile profil / (loss) after taxalion 1o net cash provided by operating
Share of profits of equily accounted Investees 14 (97.9) {80.2)
Loss on sale of inlanglbles and praperty, plant and equipment {a.6) 0.7
Loss on sale and termination of business 9 3.8 0.2
Gain on sale of other investments [1.6) -
Impalment loss 9 - 04
Net finance expense 10 94.2 374
Taxation expanse 11 63.7 56.2
Depreciation and amortisalion charges 124.8 109.4
Gross cash flows from operatlons 361.8 261.1
Movement in working capital:
Change in lnventories (1.8} a3
Change In trade and othes receivables 341 53.5
Change in Irade and other payables (114.4) (5.8)
Changa In provisions 62.4 (17.7)
Income laxes pald {116.6) (76.0)
. Net cash providad by operating activitios ©  © - S o T e Ui 954
Investing activities
Gapilal expenditure (280.5) (227.8)
Investment in equily accounted Investees - (19.0
Proceads from (additions to} other investments 71 .
Proceeds from disposals of lixed assets 1.4 109
Dividends received from joint ventures and associates 14 109.7 239
Net loans given to Joint ventures and associates - {(17.1}
Interest received 14.6 11.2
Proceeds from disposal of & subsidiary 52 -
Acquisition of non-coritreifing interest without charnge of controt (t.2j (38.7}
Acquisltion of subsidiary, net of cash acquired 23 - (267.6)
Cash inflow on acquisition of subsidiary (11.4) -
‘Netcash usod Indnvestingactivitles - - © .. . "7 (ME5A}T - (544.2)
Financing activities
Drawdown from long-term financing 818.7 173.8
Repayments of long-term financing {655.0) (36.5)
Nef decrease/ {increase) In loan with group undertakings {201.8) 2859
Net interast pald {60.7} {55.9)
Dividends paid to Non-controlling interest {22.2) (7.6)
Net cash {used In) / provided by finencing activites -~~~ {198y . 3597
Incraase In cash and cash equivalents 41.6 308
Gash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 18 269.4 249.2
Currency translation differences refaling to cash and cash squivatenls 31.0 {10.7)
Cash ang cash equivalents at end of year . .~ T : " 342,0 2694
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
{forming part of the financial statements)

1 Reporting entity

The Peninsular and Oriental Steam Navigation Company {the "Company") Is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
Urited Kingdom. The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2016 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries {fogether referred to as the "Group® and individually referred to as *Group entities”) and the
Group’s interests in associates and joinlly controlled entities. The parent company financial statements present information
about the company as a separate entity and not as a Group.

2 Basis of preparation
(a) Sfatement of compllance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
as adopted by the EU {“IFRS"). The Company has elected to prepare its parent company financial statements in accordance
with UK GAAP, these are presented on pages 76 io 108.

The consclidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 19 June 2017.
{b} Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments which are measured at fair value.

The methods used to measure fair values are discussed further in note 5.
{e) Funding and liquidity

The Group's business activities, together with factors likely to affect its future development, performance and position are
set out In the Strategic Report. In addition, note 6 to the consolidated financial statement sets out the Group's objectives,
policies and processes for managing the Group's financial risk, including capital management, and note 29 provides details
of the Group's exposure to credit risk, liquidily risk and interest rate risk arising from financial instruments.

The Group has wilhin current recelvables an amount of £1,783.6 million {2015: £2,602.8 million) due from its intermediate
parent companies and fellow subsidiaries and believe these to be recoverable. Qn this basis, the Directars believe that the
Group has the abllity to continue trading and to maet future commitments.

The Board of Directors remain satisfied with the Group's funding and liquidity position. At 31 December 20186, the Group
had net debt of £1,237.7 million (2015: £837.9 million) and £82.6 million (2015: £244.3 million) of undrawn commilted
borrowing facilities. The Group's credit facility covenants are currently well within the covenant limits. The Group generated
net cash of £216.5 million (2015: £215.4 million) from operating activities and ils interest cover for the year is 9 times
{2015: 8 times) {calculated using adjusted EBITDA to net interest expense before separately disclosed ifems).

Based on the above and having made enquiries, the Directors consider that the Company and the Group have adequate
resources to continue in operationat existence for the foreseeable fulure and therefore they consider it appropriate to adopt
the golng concern basis in preparing the accounts.

{d} Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Gompany is sterling. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each enlity are measured using that functional currency.

These consolidated financial stalemants are presented in sterling (“E”), which in the opinion of management is the most
appropriate presentation currency of the company in view of the global presence of the Group. All financial information
presented in £ are rounded lo the nearest 0.1 million.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Basis of preparation (continued)
{e) Usge of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS as adopted by the EU requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting palicies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resulls may differ from these estimates.

Eslimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an con-going basls. Revisions to accounfing estimates are
recognised in the pariod in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated finansial statements are as follows:

] Provisfon for income taxes and deferred tax assets

The Group is subject 6 income taxes in numercus jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in determining the werldwide
provision for income taxes. There are many lransactions and calculations for which the ulfimate lax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax claims based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matlers is different from the amounts that were
Initially recorded, such differences wili impacl the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the peried in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tex assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it Is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgemant Is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the fikely timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

{fi} Falr value of derivatives and financial instruments

Where the fair valus of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the consotidaled statement of financial position
cannot be derved from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including the discounted cash fiow
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets whare possible, but where this is not leasible, a degree
of judgement is required in establishing fair values. The judgements include consideration of inputs such as market risk, credit
risk and volatility.

{7y Contingent lfabilitles

There are various factors that could resull in a cantingent liability being disclosed if the probability of any outflow in seltlement
is not remole. The assessment of the oulcome and financial effect is based upon management's best knowledge and
judgement of current facts as at the reporting date.

(v} Useful life of property, plant and equipment and port concesslon rights with finite life

The useful life of property, plant and equipment and port concession rights with finite life is determined by the Group's
management based on their estimale of the period over which an asset or port concession right is expected to be available
for use by the Group. This estimate is reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each financial yoar end. This may result in a
change in the useful economic lives and ltherefore depreciation and amoriisation expense in future periods.

(v} Impalrment testing of goadwill and port concession righls

The Group determines whether googwill and pori concession rights with indefinite kfe are impaired, at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the valua in use of the cash-generating units fo which the goodwill is allocated or in
which the port concession rights with indafinite life exist. Eslimating tha value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generaling unit and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the prasent value of those cash fows.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

2 Basis of preparation {(continued)
{e) Use of estimates and judgements {continued)

v Impalrment of accounis recelvable

An eslimate of the collectible amount of accounts receivable is made when collection of the fult amount is no longer probable.
For significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually significant, but
which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied accerding to the length of time past due, based on
historical recovery rates. Any difference batwaen the amounts actually collected in future perlods and the amounts expected,
will be recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(vil) FPension and post-employment benefits

The cost of defined benefit pension plans and other post-employmenl benefits is determined using actuariat valuations. The
actuarial valuation involves making assumptions about discount rales, expected rates of return on assels, future salary
increases, mortality rates and fulure pension increases. Due to the long-term rature of these plans, such estimates are
subject fo significant uncertainty.

{viti  Business comblnations

In accounting for business combinations, judgement is required in identifying whether an identifiable intangible asset is to
be recorded separately from goodwill. Additionally, estimating the acquisifion date fair valus of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed involves management judgment. These measurements are based on Information avaitable
at the acquisition date and are based on expeciations and assumptions that have been deemed reasonable by the
management. Changes in these judgements, estimates and assumptions can materially affect the resuits of operations,

{ix) Non-consolidation of entities In which the Group hokds more than §0% shareholkding

Antwarp Gateway N.V is an equity accounted investees of the Group even though the Group has majority in ownership and
voling rights. The Directars of tha Company assessed whether or not the Group has the ability to direct the relevant
activities of this enlity unilaterally. After assessment, the Directors concluded that the underlying joint venture agresment
with the other shareholder does not provide significant control to the Group and therefore investment in these entities are
equity accounted and not consolidated.

3 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has consistently applied the accounting policies sef out in Note 4 to all periods presented in these consclidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently in the year presented in these consolidated financial
statements and have been applied consistently by the Group entities.

{a) Basig of cansolidation
()] Business comblnations

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition melthod as at the acquisition date -~ f.e. when control is
transferred to the Group. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voling rights that are currently
exercisable.

The Group measuras goodwill at the acquisition date as;

. the falr value of the consideration transferred; plus

L) the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquireg; plus

. if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the pre-existing equity interest in the acquiree;
less

. the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets {including previously unrecognised porl
concession rights) acquired and liabilities (including contingent liabilities and excluding future restructuring}
assumed.

In an acquisition, if the purchase price is lower than the fair value of the assels acquired, the resulting gain will be
racognised immediately in the statement of consclidated income statement.

In case of business combinations under common control, if the purchase price is lower than the fair value of the assets
acquired, the resulting gain wili be recognised directly in equity.

The consideration lransferred does not include amounts refated to the seltlement of pre-existing relationships.

Transaction costs, other than those associated with the issue of dabl or equity securities, that the Group incurs in
connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

Any contingent consideration payable is measured at fair value at the acquisltion date. If the contingent consideration is
classified as equity, then it is not re-measured and setflement Is accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent
changes in the falr value of the contingent consideration are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(i} Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are enlilies conlrolled by the Group. The Group controls an entily when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
enlity. The acquisition method of accounting Is used to account for business combpinations by the Group on the date of
acquisition.

(i Change In ownership interests In subsldiaries without loss of contral

Changes in the Group's interests In a subsidiary that do not resull in a loss of contrg! are accounted for as transactions with
awners in their capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill is recognised as a result of such transactions. The difference
between the fair value of any consideration pald and relevant share acquired in the carrying velue of net assels of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity under retained earnings.

{iv) Disposal of subsidiaries (loss of control)
On the loss of control, the Group deracognises the subsidiary and recognises any surplus or defict arising on the loss of
tontrol in the consolidated income statement. Any retained intsrest is re-measured at falr value on the date control is lost and

accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence
tetained.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continuved)

4 Significant accounting policles (continued)
(a) Basis of consolidation (continued)
{v) Non-controlfing Interests

For each business combination, the Group elects to measure any non-controlling interests at their propartionate share of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition.

Losses applicable to the non-controlling inferests in a subsidiary are allocated to the non-controliing interests even if doing
s0, causes the non-controlling interests to have a debit balance.

{vi Investments in associates and folnt ventures (equity-accounted Investees)

The Graup's interest in equity-accounted investees comprise interest in associates and joint ventures. An associale is an
enlily over which the Group has significant influence. A joint venture Is a typa of joint arrangement whereby tha parties Ihat
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture.

Investments In equity-accounted investees are accounted for using the equity method and are inilially recorded at cost
including transaction costs. The Group's investment includes fair value adjustments (including goodwill) net of any
accumulated impairment losses,

(vii) Transactions eliminated on consolidation

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from the transactions with
equity-accounted investess are eliminaled against the investment to the extent of the Group's interest in the Investee.
Unrealised losses are efiminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only fo the extent that there s no evidence of
impairment.

(b} Forelgn currency

() Functional and presentation currency

These consolidaled financial statements are presented in £, which is the Group's presentation currency. ltems included in
the financlal statements of each of the Group's enlitiss are measured using the currency of the primary environment in
which it oparates (functicnal currency).

{1 Farelgn currency transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency of each entily at the foreign exchange rate
ruling on the date of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and [0sses arising on transactions are recognised in the
income statement. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to
the functional curiency of each entity at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-menetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency are transiated 1o the funclional currency of each entity at the foreign exchange rate ruling
at the date of iransaction with no further remeasurement in future.

(il Faralgn operafions

For the preparation of consolidaled financial statements, the differences arising on translation of financial statements of
forelgn operalions into £ are recognised In other comprehensive incorme and accumulated in the transtation reserve
except to the extent of share of non-controlling Interests in such differences. Accumulated translation differences are re-
cycled to profit or loss on de-recognition of foreign operations as part of the gain or loss on such derecognition. In case of
partial derecognition, accumulated differences proportionate to the stake derecognised are re-cyclad.

If the setllement of a monetary ltem receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely to occur
in the foreseeable future, Lhen forefgn currency differences arising from such item form part of the net investment in the
foreign operation. Accordingly, such differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in the translation reserve.

Foreign currency differences arising on the retranslation of a financial {iability designated as a hedge of a net investment
in a foreign operation are recognised in the consolidated statement of olher comprehensive income, to the extent that the
hedge is effective.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting pollcies (continued)
(¢} Financial instruments

/] Non-derivative linanclal assets
[nitial recagnition and measurement

The Group classifies non-derivative financial assets into the following categories: held to maturity financial assets, loans and
receivables and financia! assets at fair value through profit or loss. Tha Group delermines the classification of ils financial
assets at initial recognition.

All non-derivative financial assets are recognised initially at falr value, plus, any directiy attributable transaction costs.

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables and deposits on the date that they originated. All olher financlal assets
{including assels designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date, which is the date
that the Group becomes a parly to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Group’s non-derivative financial assets comprise debt securities held o maturily, financtal assets at fair value through
profit and foss, trade and other receivables, due from related parties and cash and cash equivalents.

Subsequent measurement
The subseguent measurement of non-derivative financial asseis depends on their classification as follows:
Held to maturity financial assets

If the Group has a positive intent and abllity to hold debt securities to maturity, then these are classified as held-to-maturity.
Subsequent fo Initial recognition, held-to-maturity financial assets are measured at amontised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impaiment losses, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effeclive interest rate amorlisation is
included in finance cost in the consolidaled income statement. Gains and losses are also recognised in the consolidated
income statement when these financial assets are de-recognised.

Loans and recefvables

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments thal are not quoted in an aclive market.
Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any impairment losses. Loans and receivables comprise bank balances and cash, due from related parties and,
trade and other receivables.

Bank balances and cash

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of financial position comprise cash in hand, bank balances and
deposits.

For the purpose of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash as
defined above and cash classified as held for sale, nel of bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts form an integral part of the
Group’s cash management and is included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for tha purpose of the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

Financial assets at fair vafue through profif and foss

A financial asset is classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it is classified as held for trading or is designated as such
on initial recognition. These assets are measured al fair value and changes therein, including any interest or dividend
Income, are recognised in consolidated Income statement. Financial assels al fair value through profit and loss comprise
investmant in an equity instrument of unlisted entity.

Investment in equity instrument that do not have a quoled market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably are measured at cost.

De-recognition of non-derlvative financlal assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers
the rights to recsive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset In a transaction in which substantially all be risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or
relained by the Group is recognised as a separale asset or [iabilily.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policles {continued)
{¢) Financial instruments {continued)

{if) Non -darivative financlal Habifities

Initial recognition and measurement

The Group's non-derivative financial liabilities consist of loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, amounts due to related
parties, and trade and other payables. The Group delermines the classification of its financlal liabilities at initial
recognition. All non-derivative financial liabiliies are recognised initially at fair value fess any direclly aliributable
transaction costs,

The Group initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated fiabilities on the dale they originated. All other
financial liabilities (including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade
date, which Is the date that the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Fess paid on the establishment of foan facilities are recognised as transaction costs to the extent there is evidence that it
is probabile that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services
and amortised over the period of Lhe facility to which it relates.

Subsequent measurement
The subsecuen! measurerent of non-derivative financial liabilities depends on their classification as follows:

Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in the
consolidated Income statement.

A subslantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it shall be accounted for as an
exlinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Any gain or loss on
exlinguishment is recognised In the consolidated income statement. ! discounted present value of the cash flows
{including any fees paid} under a new lerm arrangement is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original liability, this is accounted for as an extinguishment of the old liability and the
recognition of a new Eability. Furthermore, qualitative assessment to assess extinguishment s also performed. Some of
the factors considered in performing a qualitative assessment include change in interest basis, extension of debt tenure,
changs In collateral arrangements and change in currency of lending.

De-recognition of non-derivative financial tiabllitles
The Group derecognises a financial liabilily when its conlraclual obligations are discharged or cancelled or expired.
(i Derivative financial Instruments

The Group holds derivative financial instrumenls such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its
fareign currency and interest rate risk exposures. On initial designation of the derivatives as the hedging instrument, the
Group formally dacuments the relationship between the hedging instrument and hedged item, including the risk management
objective and strategy In underiaking the hedge transaction and hedged risk logether with the mathods that will be used to
assess the effeciiveness of the hedging relationship. The Group makes an assessment, both at the inception of the hedge
relationship as welt as on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging instruments are expected to be “highly effective” in
offselting the changes in (he fair value or cash flows of the respeclive hedged items atiributable to the hedged risk and
whether the aclual results of each hedge are within the acceptable range.

Darivatives are recognised initially at fair value and attributable transaction costs are recognised in the consolidated income
statement when incurred. Derivafives are carried as financial assels when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities
whan the fair value is negative.

Derivative Instruments that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships are classified as financial
liabllities or assets at fair value through profit or foss.

Subsequent to inilial recognition, derivatives are measured at falr value, and changes therein are accounted for as described
below:
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
(c} Financial instruments {continuad)
(i) Derlvative financial instruments {continied)

Cash flow hedges

Whan a derivative is designated as the hedging instrument in a hedge of the varabllity in cash flows afiributable to a
particular risk assaciated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign curency
fisk in an unrecognised firm commitment that could affect the consolidated income slatement, then such bedges are
classified as cash flow hedges.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative hedging Instrument designated as a cash flow hedge are recognised directly in
consolidated statement of other comprehensive income {o the extent that the hedge is effective and presented in the hedging
reserve in equity. Any ineffective portion of changes in the fair value of the derivative is recognised Immedialely in the
consolidated income statement.

When the hedged Item is a non-financial assst, the amount recognised in the consolidated statement of other comprehensive
income is transferred o the carrying amount of the asset when il is recognised. In other cases, the amount recognised in
consolidated statement of other comprehensive Income s transferred to the consolidated income statement in the same
period {hat the hedged item affects the consolidated Income statement. if the hedging instrument no longer meets the criteria
for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the designation is revoked, then hedge accounting is
discontintied prospectively. The cumulative gain or loss previously recagnised in consolidated statement of other
comprehensive income remains there until the forecast transaction or firm commitment occurs. If the forecast transaction or
firm commitment is no longer expected to oceur, then the balance in equity is reclassified o income statement.

(v} Offsetting of financlal Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the consolidated statement of financial

position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right lo offset the amounts and intends either to set off on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilily simultanecusly.

{d}) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses {rafer
to note 4(i)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly atiribulable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of a self-constructed asset
includes the cost of malerials and direct labour, any other cosls directly aflributabla to bringing the asset to a working
condition for its intended use and the cost of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located.

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the refated equipment is capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, Ihey are depreciated as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of properly, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and recognised within ‘other income’ in the
consolidated income statement.

Caplital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is measured at cost less impairment losses and not deprecialed until such time the assels are
ready for intended use and transferred to the respective category under property, plant and equipment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
{d) Property, plant and equlpment {continued)
()] Recognition and measurement (continued)
Dredging

Diedging expendilure is categorised into capital dredging and major malntenance dredging. Capital dredging is
expendifure which includes creation of a new harbour, deepening or extension of the channe! berths or waterways in
order to allow access to larger ships which will result in fulure economic benefits for the Group. This expenditure is
capitalised and amorlised over the expected period of the relevant concession agreement. Major maintenance dredging is
expenditure incurred to restore the channel to its previous condition and depth. Maintenance dredging is regarded as a
separate component of the asset and is capitalised and amortised evenly over 10 years.

(1) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item if it
is probable that the fulure economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Group and its cost can be measured
reliably. The carrying amounts of the replaced parts are derecognised. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property,
plant and equipment are racognised in the consolidated income statement as incurred.

(i) Depraciation

Land and capital work in progress is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is recognised in the conselidated
income statement on a siraight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each part of an item of property, ptant and
equipment and is based on cost less residual valus.

The estimated useful lives of assels are as follows:

Assats Useful life (years)
Buildings . 5-50
Plant and equipment 3-25
Ships 10-30
Dredging (included in land and buildings) 10-99

Dredying costs are depreciated on a straight line basis based an the lives of various components of dredging.

Leased assels are deprecialed over the shorter of the [sase term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that
the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease lerm. No depreciation is provided on freehold land.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted prospectively, if
required.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount {refar fo note 4 (i} (ii}).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continuedy}

4 Significant accounting policies {continued)
{d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(v} Borrowing cost

Borrowing cosis directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assels
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for thelr intended use or sale. Borrowing costs may include:

(8) Interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described in 1AS 39,
(b} finance charges in respect of finance leases recognised in accordance with 1As 17, and

(¢) exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs,

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period In which Lhey are incurred,

(e} Goodwill

Gouadwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associales and joint ventures. Goodwill represents the excess of the
cost of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, labilities and contingant
liabilities of the acquiree. In an acquisition, If the purchase price is lower than the fair value of the assets acquired, the
resulting gain will be recognised immediately in the statement of consolidated income staternent.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses (refer to note 4(f). Goodwill is not amortised but it is
tested for impaimment annually, or more frequenlly if evenls or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. An impafrment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

In respect of equity-accounted investees, the carrying amaount of gocdwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is not tested for impairment separately.

{f) Port concesslon rights

Tha Group classifies the porl concession rights as intangible assels as the Group bears demand rigk over the infrastructure
assels. Substantially all of the Group's lerminal operations are conducted pursuant to [ong-temm operating concessions or
leases entered Into with the owner of a relevant port for terms generally between 25 and 50 years (excluding the port
cancesslon rights relating to associates and joint ventures). The Group commonly starls negotiations regarding renewal of
concession agreements with approximately 5-10 yoars remaining on the term and often obtains renewals or extensions on
the concession agreements in advance of their expiration in return for a commitment to make certain capital expenditures in
rospect of the subject terminal. In addition, such negotiafions may vesult in the re-basing of rental charges to reflect
pravalling market rates. However, based on tha Group's experience, incumbent operators are typically granted renewal often
because it can be costly for a port owner to switch operators, both administratively and due to intarruptions to port operations
and reduced productivity associated with such transactions. Port concession rights consist of:

[ Port concession rights arising on business combinations

The cost of port concession rights acquired in @ business combination is the fair value as at the date of acquisition.
Following initial recognition, port concession rights are carried at cost less accumulated amertisation and any
accumulated impairment losses {refer to note 4(i}). Internally generated port concession rights, excluding capitalized
development costs, are recognised In the consolidated income statement as incurred. The useful lives of port concession
rights are assessed to be either finite or Indefinite.Port concession rights with finite ives are amortised on a straight line
basis over the usefu) economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the port concession
rights may be impaired.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (cantinued}

The amortisation period and amortisation method for port concession rights with finite usefu! lives are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the assels are accounted for by changing lhe amortisation period or methed, as appropriate, and
treated as changes in accounting eslimates. The amortisation expenses on port concession rights with finite useful lives
are recognised in the consolidated income statement an a slraight line basis. Port concession righls with indefinite lives
{arising where freehold righls are granted) are not amoriised and are tested for impaimment at [sast on an annual basis or
when the impairment Indicator exists, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The useful life of port
concession rights with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues
to be supporiable. If not, the change In the useful life assessmant from indefinite to finite Is made on a prospective basis.

i Port concession rights arising from Service Concession Arrangements {IFRIC 12)

The Group recognises port concession rights arising from a service concession arrangement, in which the grantor
{government or port authorities) controls or regulates the services provided and the prices charged, and also conlrols any
significant residual interest in the infrastructure such as property, plant and equipment, if the infrastructure is existing
infrastructure of the grantor or the infrastructure is constructed or purchased by the Group as part of the service
concession arrangement.

Port concession rights also include certain property, plant and equipment which are reclassified as intangible assets in
accordance with IFRIC 12 'Service Concession Arrangementis’. These assels are amortised based on the lower of thelr
useful lives or concession pariod.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of port concession rights are measured as the diflerence between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated income slalement when
the asset is de-recognised.

The estimated useful lives for port concession rights range within a period of 5 — 50 years (including the concession rights
relating to equity accounted investees).

1)) Inventories

inventories mainly consist of spare parts and consumables. Inventaries are measured at the fower of cost and net
realisable value. The cost of invenlories is based on weighted average melhod and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring inventories and bringing them to their existing location and condition. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

(h) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangament is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception date, The arrangement is assessed for whether (ulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific
assel or asséts or the arrangemant conveys a righl to use the asset or assets, even i that right is not explicilly specified in
an arrangement.

U] Group as a lessee

Assets held by the Group under leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operaling leases are recognised in the
consolidated income stalement on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Lease incenlives received are
recognised as an integral par of the total lease expense, over the term of the lease.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance lease.

Contingent payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term of the lease when
the lease adjusiment is confirmed.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continved)

4 Signlffcant accounting policles (continued)

{1 Group as a lessor

Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negoliating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income, Contingent rents are recognised as
income in the period in which they are sarned.

{t) Leasing and sub-leasing transactions

Leasing and sub-leasing transaclions are designed to achieve certain benefils for the third parties in overseas locations
In return for a cash benefit to the Group. Such cash benefit is accounted in the consolidated income statement based on
its economic substance.

{iv) Leases of fand in port concession

Leases of land have not been classified as finance leases as the Group betieves thaf the substantial risks and rewards of
ownership of the land have not been lransferred. The existence of a significant exposure of the lesser fo perfarmance of the
asset through contingent fentals was a basis of concluding that substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership have not
passed.

) Impairment
0] Financial assets
(a) Loans and receivables and held to maturity investments

The Group considers evidence of impairment for loans and recelvables and held to maturity Invesiment securities at both
a specific asset level and collective Javel. All individually significant receivables and held to maturity investment securities
are assessed for specific impalmenl.

An impairment loss In respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimaled future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

() Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets are reviewed for
impalrment whenever there is an indication of impairment. If any such indicalion exists then the asset's recoverable
amount is estimated,

For impaimment testing, the assets are grouped together into smallest group of assats (cash gereraling unit or *CGU")
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely Independent of the cash inflows of alher assets or CGU's.

Goodwill and port concession rights with infinite useful lives, as part of their respective cash-generating units, are also
raviewed for impairment at each reporting date or at least once in a year regardless of any Indicators of impairment. The
recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to
gell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash fows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset or
cash generating uenil.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the units and then to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a
pro-rata basis.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policies (continued)
{i) Impairment (continued)
{H) Non-financial assets (continued)

In respact of non-financial assets {other than goodwill), impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at
each reporting dale for any indications that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used lo determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss fs reversed only
to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount, which would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amoriisation, if no impairment koss had been recognised.

{) Assets held for sale

Assets (or disposal groups compriging assels and liabilities) which are expected lo be recovered primarily through sale
rather than through cenfinuing use are classified as held for sale. Immediately before ciassification as held for sate, fire
assels (or components of a disposal group) are re-measured in accordance with the Group's accounting policies.
Thereafter, generally the assels (or disposal group) are measured at the lower of their carrying amount or fair value less
costs to sell. Any Impairment loss on a disposal group is first allocated lo goodwill, and then fo remaining assels and
liabilities on a pro rata basis, except that no loss is allocaled to inventories, financial assets, deferred tax assets and
employee benefit assets which continue to be measured in accordance with the Group's accounting policies. Impairment
losses on Initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains or logses on re-measurement are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. Gains are not recognised in excess of any cumulative impairment loss,

Port cancession rights and property, plant and equipment once classified as held for sale or distribution are not amortised
or depreciated. In addition, equity accounting of equity-accounted investees ceases once classified as held for sale.

(k) Share capltal and premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. incremental costs directly atiributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised
as a deduction from equity. Any excess payment received over par value is treated as share premium.

1)) Employee banefits
h Pension and post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is & pest-employment benefit plan in which the company pays the fixed contribution to a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense in the income staternent during which the services are rendered
by employees.

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.

The Groug's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating
the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. That
beneflt is discounted to determine the present value, and the fair value of any plan asset is deducted to arrive at net
obligation. The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method which
attributes entitlement to benefits to the current period (to determine current service cost) and to the current and prior
periods {to dstermine the present value of defined benefit cbligation) and is based on actuarial advice.

Re-measuremants of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assels
({excluding interest) and the effect of the asset celling (if any, excluding interest) are recognised directly in the
consolidated staterent of other comprehensive income. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is
deterrnined separately for each plan. Cantributions, including lump sum payments, in respect of defined contribution
pension schemes and multi-emptoyer defined benefit schemes where it is not possible to identify the Group's share of the
scheme, are charged to the consolidated income statement as they fall due.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policles {continued)
{n Employee benelits (continued)
{1h Long-term service benefits

The Group's net obligation in respect of fong-term service benefits, other than pension plans, is the amount of future
benefit that emplayees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. The obligation is calculated
using the projected unit credit method and is discounted to its present value and the fair value of any related assels is
deducted. The discount rate is the yield at the reporiing date on AA credit rated bonds that have maturity dates
approximating to the terms of the Group's obligations.

(i) Short-term service benefits

Shori-term employee benefits are expensed as the relaled service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount
expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably,

{m} Provisions

Provisions for environmental restaration, restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligalion as a result of past events; it is probable that an outllow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination panaliies and employee termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for future operating less.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected fo be required to selils the obligation using a
pre-tax rale that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liabliity. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost in the consolidated income statement.

{n) Revenue

Revenue is recognised fo the extent that it Is probatle that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured af the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or
duly,

Revenue mainly consists of containerized stevedoring, other conlainerized revenue, non- containerized revenue, service
concession revenue and lease rentals. Non-containerized revenue mainly includes logistics and handling of break bulk
cargo.

The following specific recognition criferia must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Rendering of services

Revenue from providing containerized stevedoring, other containerized services and nan-containerized services is
recognised on the delivery and completion of those services.

Service concesslon arrangements (IFRIC 12)

Revenues relating to construction contracts which are entered into with government authorities for the construction of the
infrastructure necessary for the provision of services aré measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable, Revenue from service concession arrangements is recognised based an the fair value of construction work
performed a! the reporting date.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Slgnificant accounting policies (continued)
{o0) Finance income and expense

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested and gains on hedging instruments that are recognised in
the consclidated income statement. Interest income is recognised as it acerues, using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprises interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on provisions, impairment losses
recognised on financial assets and losses on hedging Instruments that are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Finance income and expense also include realised and unrealised exchange gains and [osses on manetary agsets and
liabilities (refer to note 4(b)(i)).

(p} Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognised in the consolidated income
statement except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised directly in consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected lax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted al the reporting date in the countries where the Group operates and generates taxable income. it also includes
any adjusimant to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised using the liabilily method, providing for temparary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for finandial reporting pumoses and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax Is not
recognised for:

. the temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill and the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities in a transaction that Is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss; and

. the temporary differences relating lo investmants in subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities to the extent that

they probably will not reverse in the foresssable future.

The measurement of deferred tax reflacts the tax consequances that would follow the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, lo recover or settie the carrying amount of its assels and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary ditferences when they reverse,
based on the laws that have been enacted or substantivaly enacted by the reporling date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporaty differences, lo the extenl
that it is probable that fulure taxable profits will be available against which they can be utilised. Deferred tax assels are
reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the refated tax benefit will
be realized.

Deferrad tax assets and tiabilities are offset only if certain criteria are mel.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4 Significant accounting policfes {(confinued})
{a} Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business aclivities from which it may earn revenue
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to (ransactions with any of the Group's other
components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's Board of Directors lo agsess
performance.

Segment results that are reported to the Board of Directors include items directly attributable to a segment as welt as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise corporate assels (primarily
Company's head office}, head office expenses and income tax assets and liabilities.

n Separately disclosed items

The Group presents, as separately disclosed items on lhe face of the consolidated income statement, those ftems of
income and expense which, because of the nature of the events giving rise to them, merit separate presentation to allow
users to understand better, the elements of financial performanice in the period, so as o facilitate a comparison with prior
periods and a better assessment of trends in financial performance.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

4

(8)

Significant accounting policies (continued}

New standard and Interpretation not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are not effective for annual periods beginning
1 January 2018, and have not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. Those which may be
relevant to the Group are set out balow. The Group does not plan to adopt these standards early.

IFRS 9 Financial instruments {effective from 1 Jantary 2018}

IFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of financiat assets and financial liabilities and
introduces a new expecled credit loss model. The new guidance has also substantially reformed the existing hedge
accounting rules. It provides a more principles-based approach that afigns hedge accounting closely with risk
management policies. The actual impact of adopting IFRS 9 on the Group's consolidated financial statements in
2018 is nol known and cannot be reliably estimatad becausa it will be dependent on financial instruments thal the
Group holds and economic condilions at thal fime as well as the eleclions and judgements it will make in the future.

IFRS 15 Revenuse from coniracts with customers (effective from 1 January 2018)

IFRS 15 replaces TAS 18 which covers conlracts for goods and services and IAS 11 which covers construction
contracls. The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is recognised when control of a good or service
transfers to a customer — so the nolion of control replaces the existing notion of risks and rewards. The standard
provides a single principles-based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with custorers. The adaption of this
standard is not expected lo have any significant impact on the Graup’s financial statements.

IFRS 16 Leases (effective from 1 January 2019)

IFRS 16 replaces existing leases guidance including IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease, SIC-15 Operafing lease incenlives and SIC -27 Evaluating the substance of transaclion involving
the legal form of lease.

The new standard requires the lessee lo recognise the operating lease commitment on the balance sheet. The
Group, as a lessee, has substanlial operating leases and commitments as disclosed in note 31. The standard would
require fulure lease commilments to be recognised as a liability, with a corresponding right of use asset. This will
impact the EBITDA and debt to equity ratios of the Group. In addition, depending on the stage of leass, there would
be a different pattern of expense recognition on leases. Currently, iease expenses are recognised in cost of sales,
however, in future the lease expense would be an amortisation charge and finance expense.

The Group is in the process of collating its leases and computing the impacl. The impact of this standard's application
Is expected to be significant.

Amendment to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows (effective from 1 January 2017)

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
In liabllities arising from financing activities. The adoption of this standard is nol expected to have any significant
impact on the Group's financial slatements.

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes (effective from 1 January 2017)

The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets for unrealized losses on debt instruments measured at
falr value. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

8 Determination of falr values

A number of the Group's accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both financial and
non-financial assets and liahilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/ or disclosure purposes
based on the following methods. When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair
values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

(] Property, plant and equipmant

The fair value of property, planl and equipment recognised as a result of a business combination is based on market
values. The market value of property is the estimated amount for which a properly could be exchanged on the date of
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller In an arnv's length transaclion after proper markeling wherein the
parlies had each acted knowledgeably, prudently and without compuision. The market value of items of plani, equipment,
fixtures and filtings is based on the quoted market prices for similar items.

() Port concesslion rights

Port concession righls acquired in a business combination are accounted at their fair values, The fair value is based on
the discounted cash flows expecied to be derived from the use and eventual sale of the assels.

(i) {nvestments in debt securities
The fair values of equity and deh! securities are determined by reference to their quoted closing bid price at the reporting

date. The fair value of debl securilies held to maturily is determined based on the discounted cash flows at a market related
discount rate. The fair value of debt securities held to maturity Is determined for disclosure purposes onfy.

{iv) Trade and other recelvables/ payables

The lair value of irade and other receivables and trade and other payables approximates 1o the carrying values due to the
short term maturity of these instruments.

{v) Derivatives

The fair value of forward exchange contracts and interest rate swaps is based on the bank quotes at the reporling dates.
Similar contracts are traded in an active market and the quotes reflect the actual lransaclions in similar instruments.

tvi) Non-derivative financlal liabllifies

Falr value for quoted bonds is based on their market price (including unpaid interest) as al the reperting date. Other loans
include term loans and finance leases. These are largely at variable Interest rates and therefore, the carrying value
normally equates to the fair value.

The fair value of bank balances and cash and bank overdrafis approximates to the carrying value due to the short term
maturity of these Instruments.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
3 Financial risk management
Ovarview

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instrurnents:

(a) credit risk
(b) liquidity risk
(c) market risk

This note presents information about \he Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's objectives, policies
and processes for measuring and managing risk. Further quantitative disclosures are included throughout these
consolidated financial statements. Also refer to note 29 for further detalls.

Risk management framewark

The Board of Directors, in conjunction with the Board of Directors of DP World Limited, have overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.

The Group's risk management policies ara established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set
appropriate rsk limits and conlrols, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. The Group, through its fraining and
managemant standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive confrol environment in which all
smployees undersstand their roles and obligations.

(a) Credit risk

Credi risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer fails to meet ils contractual obligations, and arises
principally from the Group's receivables from customers, amounts due from related parties and invesirment securlties.

Trade and other recelvables

The Group trades mainly with recognised and creditworthy third parties. it is the Group's policy that all customers wheo
wish to tfrade on credit terms are subject to oredit verificalion procedures and are required to submit financlal
guarantees based on their craditworthiness. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with
the result that the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The Group establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimale of incurred losses in respect of trade and
other receivables. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss component that relates to individually
significant exposures, and a collaclive loss component established for groups of similar assets in respect of losses that
have besn incurred but not yet idenlified. The collective foss allowance is delermined based on historical data of payment
statistics for similar financial assets.

Other financial assets

Credit risk arising from other financial assets of the Group comprises cash and cash equivalents and certain derivative
instruments. The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from defauit of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amount of these instruments.

The Group manages its credit risks with regard lo bank deposits, throughout the Group, through a number of controls,
which include assessing the credit rating of the bank either from public credit ratings, or internal analysis where public
data is not available and consideration of the support for financial institutions from their cenlral banks or other regulatory
authoritiss,

Financlal guarantees

The Group's palicy s to consider the provision aof a financial guarantee to wholly-owned subsidiaries, where there is a
commercial rationale to do so. Guaranteas may also be provided fo equity accounted investees in very hmited
circumstances and always only for the Group's share of the obligation. The provision of guaraniees always requires the
approval of senior management.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

6 Financial risk management (continued)
Risk management framework {(continued)

(b Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk Is the risk that the Group will not be able to meel its financiaf obligations as they fall due. The Group's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it wili always have sufficient cash to meet its liabllities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the
Group’s reputation.

The Group’s objective is to maintain & balance betwaen continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank
facilities and by ensuring adequate internally generated funds. The Group's terms of business require amounts to be paid
within 60 days of the date of provision of the service. Trade payables are noimally seftled within 45 days of the date of
purchase.

{c) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreigh exchange rates and Inlerest rates will affect the
Group's income or lhe value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market rik management [s to
manage and contral market risk exposures wilhin acceptable parameters, while optirmising the retumn.

The Group buys and sells derivatives and also incurs financial liabilities, in order fo manage market risks. Al such
transactions are carried out within the guidelines set by the Board of Directors in the Group Treasury policy. Generally,
the Group seeks to apply hedge accounting in order to manage the volatility in the consolidated income statement.

(0] Currency risk

The proporlion of the Group's net operating assets denominaled in foreign currencles is approximately 80.5% (2015
75.7%) with the result that the Group’s consclidated statement of financial posilion, and in particular owner's equity, can
be affected by currency movements when it is refranslated at each year end rate. The Group partially mitigates the effect
of such movements by borrowing in the same currencies as those in which the assels are denominated and using cross
currency swaps. The impact of currency movements on operaling profit is parlially mitigated by Interest costs being
incurred in foreign currencies.

interest on borrowings is denominated in the currency of the borrowings. Generally, borrowings are denominated in
currencles that match the cash flows generated by the underiying forelgn operations of the Group. This provides an
economic hedge without derivatives being entered into and therefore hedge accounting is not applied in lhese
circumstances.

A portion of the Group's sclivities generate part of their revenue and incur some costs outside their main functional
currency. Due to the diverse number of locations in which the Group operates there i3 some natural hedging that occurs
within the Group. When it is considered that currency volatility could have a matarial impact on the results of an eperation,
hedging using forward fareign currency contracts is undertaken to reduce the short-term effect of currency movements.

When the Group's businasses enter Into capital expenditure or [ease commitments in currencies olher than their main
functiona! currency, these commitments are hedged in most instances using forward contracls and currency swaps in
order lo fix the cost when converted to the functional currency. The Group classifies its forward exchange contracts
hedging forecas! lransactions as cash flow hedges and states them at fair value.

(i Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rales relates primarily to the Group's long-term debt
obligations with a fixedffloating interest rate and bank deposits.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

8 Financlal riak management {continued)
{c} Market risk (continued)
(i} Interest rate risk (continued)

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost by entering into interest rate swap agreements, in which the Group agrees
to exchanga, al specified intervals, the difference batween fixed and variable rate interest amounts calculated by reference
ta an agreed-upon notional principal amount, These swaps are designated to hedge underlying debt obligations.

Al 31 December 2016, after taking into account the effect of interest rale swaps, approximately 79.4% (2015: 88.2%) of the
Graup's borrowings are at a fixed rate of interest.

Capital management

The Board's policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market confidence and to
sustain future development of the business. Capiltal consists of share capital, share premiurn, relained earnings, hedging and
other reserves, acluarial reserve and translation reserve. The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise
shareholder value. The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher retums that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaties are subject ta externatly imposed capital requirements.

The key performance ratios as at 31 December are as follows:

£ million

" Hole CTgeie . - 2006

Tatal Intarest bearing Toans and borrowings — ‘ 9 1,579.7 1,107.3
Lass: cash and cash equivatents 18 (342.0) {269.4)
Total net debt 1,237.7 837.9
Tatal Equity 2.750.2 31,6603
Adjusted EBITDA 460.2 3406
Neut finance costs before separately disclosed items 51.5 43.5
Nat debt / Equily 0.45 0.23
Net debt / Adjusled ERITDA 27 2.5
Tl-!erest cover before separately disclosed items 89 7.8
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

7. Operating segments

The internal management reports which are prepared under EU-IFRS are reviewed by the Board of Diractors ('Chlef Operating Decision
Maker’} based on the location of the Group's assels and liabililies. The Group has identified the following geographic areas as its basls of
segmentation. The Graup measures segment performance based on the eamings before separately dgisclosed items, interest, tax,
depreciation and amerlisation ("Adjusted EBITDA").

s Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent
«  Australia and Americas
+«  Furope and Afiica

Each of these operating segments have an Individual appointed as Segment Director responsible for thesa segments, who in turn reports
to the Chief Operating Declsion Maker.

In addition 1o 1he above reporiable segments, the Group also reports unallocated head office costs, finance costs, finance income and tax
expense under lhe head office segment.

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment 1s included below.

£ miltica
LD st o 2016
. Eurape . L
LT B, _ . Note lan * ¢ oang - and o He . Total®
Bymglon |- . . _-TC o< T T nn © % subcontinent -Amerlcas . Afriea | Office ' group .
Revenue 324.8 472.6 2p2.3 -~ 1,079.6
Segment results from operations 168.3 154.6 33.2 {76.5) 269.5
Finance income 10 “ - - 47.8 47.8
Flnance expenses 10 - - S - (1420} (142.0)
‘Profit/{loss) fortheyear . =~ - T T T 168 1546 - 0332 MT0.7) - 1753
Depreciation and amoriisation 339 51.4 381 0.4 124.8
Impalrment lossos - - - - -
Share of profit of equity accounted investess before separately
disclosed Items 4 86.6 o7 12.8 - 1001
Tax expenses 11 - - - 63.7 63.7
Capital expenditure 60.3 108.6 113.7 . 280.56
Segment assets
Current and non-current assets 6699 1,373.0 14,4437 16242 51108
Equity-accounted Investments 14 332.8 7.7 101.1 (2.9) 438.7
Taxation assels - - - 269 2569
Cash 18 - - - 342.0 342.0
Yolalassels - -~ - o - wiT o e TS 71,0027 C.1,380,7; 1,544.8 1,989.2 -59{7.4
Segmant liabllides
Currant and non-current liabilities 284.4 256.8 183.9 243.7 968.8
Taxation lfabllities - - - £29.6 529.6
Financial instruments 20 - - - 89.1 891
Loans and borrowings 14 - - - 1,687 1,679.7
".Tofal liabilites -~ . - .~ . - . R . 284.4 - - -256.8 183.9 24421 3,167.2
" Earning before separalely dlsclosed ltems, Interest,tax, depreciauon and Amortlsation -
. (“Ad]usted EBITDA™) - - : :
Revenue hefors separately disclosed items 274.3 472.6 282.3 - 1,020.%
EBITDA (Adjusied) 192.2 204.8 76.2 {42.8} 460.2
Flnance incormne 10 - - - 47.8 47.8
FInance costs 10 - - - {99.3) (99.3)
Tax expense " - - - {63.7) {83.7)
Depreclation and amortisation {33.8) [51.4} {39.1) (0.4) (124.83)
Adjusted not profit 158.3 153.2 371 (128.4) 220.2
Adjusted for separately disclosed {tems 9 . 1.2 (3.8) (42.4) (45.0)
Profit from continying operations o 1583 1544 333 (170.8)  175.2
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7. Operating segments (continued)
— E mticn
LT . 2016
© 7 AsaPadfic " Awtrelia ~ 7 Europe o . L
L e eapen e P B
Byftegion - .~ subcorvnent - Americas . Aica T ofsce group
Revenue 274 4 404.2 254.2 - 8328
Segment resulls from aperations 1172 138 75 ©3.9} 174.4
Finance income 10 - - - 53.8 63.8
Finance expenses 10 - - - (80.9} {90.9)
Profit{loss) for the year ERRI § 136 ° 7.5 (1050} 1373
Depreciation and amortizalion 29.0 40.3 387 0.4 109.4
Impairmenl losses - . 0.4 - 04
Share of profit of equity accounted 14 60.5 0.6 10.1 - 80.2
Investees bafare separately disclosed items
Tax expenses 1 - - - 58.2 68.2
Capitat expenditure 534 481 126.2 0.1 227.8
Segment assets
Cunrent and non-curient assels 5004 1,068.4 1,275 2,475.4 5,319.5
Equily-accounted investments 14 302.3 5.8 130.0 74 4455
Taxalion assels - . - 6.7 16.7
Cash 18 - - - 25694 260.4
. Total assels - 8027 . 1.0742 14053 27689 . 6,0611
Segment liabilities
Current and non-current liabilities 189.8 308.7 128.8 1341 7614
Taxation liabilities - - - 467.8 4678
Financial Instruments 20 - . - 54.3 54.3
Loans and borrowings 19 - - - 1,107.3 1,107.3
Tolal liablities . - — {6@8- 3087 . - 1288 . 17688 -  2,3908
Revenue before separately disciosed items 225.2 404.2 254.2 - B583.6
E8ITDA (Adjusted) 146.2 153.9 47.8 (7.3) 340.8
Finance ncome 10 - - - 47.4 £74
Finance cosls 10 - - - (90.9) {90.9)
Tax expense i - - - (56.2) (56.2)
Dapreciation and amartisation (29.0) (40.3} {39.7) (0.4) (109.4)
Adjusted net profit 117.2 11386 8.1 {107.4) 131.5
Adjusted for separalely disclosed llems 9 - - 0.6} 6.4 58
Profit from continuing operaticng .~ - ’ 117.2 1136 - - TS - {101.0) 21373
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B. Net operating costs
E mifkon
1ncluded within Group operating profit are the following ltems: =~ -7~ . 208 2006
Depraciation and amortisation of prepald leases, intangible asseis and property plant and equipment 124.8 109.4
Audit feas 1.0 0.9
Operaling lease rental 127.8 114.4
Hire of plant, machinery and ships 30.3 165
£ mitson
-Fees pald to the company's principal auditor-KPMG_~ - - - .- 7 Lo caete-T o iz0te
Fees paid to the company’s auditor for the audit of the company's accounts 0.2 01
Fees paid to the company’s audilor and its assoclates for services pursuant to legisialion
Audit of the company's subsidiaries 0.8 0.8
Cther Sarvices - -
Pensien Scheme - -
1.0 0.9
Non-audil and other assurance sarvices:
Tax services - -
All other services 0.2 0.2
0.2 0.2
Tolal of Eitrldil'alid_hbngaudit seivices ¢~ - L oo e e . S I IRRO K

Fees of £36,000 (2015; £36,000), in respect of the audit, and Nil (2015: Nif), in respect of tax services, were paid to KPMG
LLP by the UK pension scheme.

9. Separately disclosed itemns

- -,£m_|n|on'
_ N T e
Gther Hal
Cost of Sate of Eqully
Revenue Sales ﬂ;?;::gu businesses n"'"ﬁ'o"ﬁ eamings Total
Construction contract revanue ralating to service R _ . " .
concessons 50.5 50.6
Construction contract costs relating to servica concesslens - (50.5) - - - - {50.5)
Galn on sale of other Investments - - 15 - - - 1.5
Loss on sale and termination of buslness - - - (.8 b - (1.6)
Transaction ¢osts - - - - {40.1) - {40.1)
Hedge costs - " - - {25} - (2.6)
Share of toss of equity-accounted investees - - - - - {2.2) 2.2)
50.5 {50.5) 1.5 (1.6} {42.7) {2.2} (46.0]
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9. Separately disclosed Items (continued)
£ milfon
" 2015
Ohet Net y
Costof " Sagof .
Revenue Swes  OPENG pigices fnmawra ea:En?:gv Totat
Canstruction tontract revenue relating lo service concessiens 400 - - - - - 49.2
Gonstruction contract costs relating 1o service concesslions - {49.2) - - * - {49.2)
Impairment of prapearty, plant and equipment - - (0.4) - . - {0.4)
Loss on sale and terminaticn of business . - - {0.2) - - ©2)
Net gain on restrucluring of loan . - - - 6.1 . 64
Ineffective knterest rate swaps - - - - 03 - 0.3
49,2 (49.2) {0.4) {0.2) 8.4 3 58

Construction contract revenue and costs: In accordance with IFRIC 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’, the Group has
recorded revenue on the construction of a port in the ‘Asia Pacific and [ndian subcontinent’ region. The construction revenue
represents the fair value of the construction services provided in developing the porl. No margin has been recognised, as in
management’s apinion the fair value of the construction services provided approximates the construction cost.

Other income represents the gain on sale of other investments in subsidiaries In the ‘Europe and Africa’ region. (2015
represents impairment of property, plant and equipment related fo a subsidiary in the ‘Europs and Africa’ region).

Loss on sale and termination of business relates to the loss on sale of a subsidiary in the ‘Europe and Africa’ region.
Transaction costs relates 1o costs on rastructuring and termination of loans in a subsidiary in the ‘Europe and Africa’ regian.

Hedge costs relates to the loss on termination of interest rale swap in & subsidiary in the ‘Australia and Americas’ regicn and
an ineffective element of a cash flow hedge in a subsidiary in the ‘Europe and Africa’ region.

Share of loss from equity-accounted investees represents the non-recurring expenses incurred in subsidiaries in the ‘Europe
and Africa’ region.

Net gain on restructuring of loan in 2015 mainly represents the fair value gain being the difference between the fair value of
the laan based on market rate of interest as against the carrying value, reversal of excess interest accrual on the old loan
partly offset by the iransaction costs wrilten off on the restructuring of a loan in a subsidtary In the "Asia Pacific and Indian
subcontinent’ region.

Ineftactive interest rate swaps in 2015 related to a subsidiary in the ‘Europe and Africa’ region.
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10. Net financing expenses
E mithon
. s oo s
Finance [ncome
interest income 29.0 35.4
Exchange gains 18.5 181
Fair value gain 0.3 0.3
47.8 53.8
Finance expenses
Interest expense {i19.2) (62.2)
Exchange losses {16.1) {24.3)
Falr value loss (2.5) 0.0
Net interest costs In respect of pension plans (4.2) 4.4)
(142.0) (90.9)
‘Nel financing oxpense .. . .. - oL o T4y . L S(3T)
11. Taxation
£ million
| s I 2016
UK corporation tax
Curran! tax (credit) / charge for the year 8.7} 1“7
Adijustment In respect of prior years 7.0 ©2
0.3 14.5
Overseas tax
Current {ax charge for the year {a4.7) {85.6)
Adjustment in respect of prior yaars 1.8 88
{62.8) (77.8)
. .3
Tolat curren tax {62.6) (63.3)
Befarred lax
" " (0.4) 6.8
Origination and reversal of temporary differences In the current year
Adustment in respect of prior years ©.7) 0.3
®7 . (862

- Tax on broﬁl fbrilha year'fr.- .

The adjustments in respect of prior periods of £28.1 million (2015: £8.9 million) arises from the finalisation and agreement of
prior year tax computations for companies in the UK and overseas.

As of the last balance sheet date, the rate of LUK corporalion 1ax was enacted lo reduce over time to a final rate of 18% from
1 April 2020. At the balance sheet date this rate had been enacted to be further reduced to 17% from 1 April 2020. The
group remeasured its UK deferred tax assets and liabilities al the end of the reporting period in 2016 accordingly to the rate
of 17%. The remeasurement did not have a material effect on the 2018 results.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
11. Taxation (continued)

Factors affecting the taxation charge for the currant year

Tha total taxalion charge is higher (2015: higher) than the profit on ordinary activities multiplied by the standard rate of
corporation tax in the UK at 20% per cent (2015; 20.25 per cent}. The differences are explained as follows:

Recongiliation of the effective tax rate % £ milion % £ million
: Czo16. ol
239.0 193.5

Profil before taxation
Profil before taxation multiplied by tha standard rate of corporation 20.00% (47.8) 20.25% (39.2)
tax in the UK of:
Effecls of:

4.1% 0.7 0.8% 1.6

Non-taxable income less expenses not deductitle for tax
purposes, other than impalrment of goodwill

L D,
Tax deduction in respect of pension schemes 1.0% 23 0.8% 15
Net of (unrelisved tax losses carried forward) 7 utilization of tax (6.0%) (14.3) {1.3%) (24}
[osses
2% 0.4 0.4% )
Changes In the UK corporation tax rale 0.2% 4% 08
0, oy
Higher rate taxes on overseas eamings (22.6%) 63.9) {22.8%) 43.7)
0, &)
Withholding and olher taxes suffered oversees (12.2%) {28.4) (9.5%) (184)
17.1% 40.9 17.8% 34.4
Tax on eamings from equily accourted investees
11.8% 281 46% 89

Adjustments to tax charge In respeci of prior patiods
" Effective lax idte = .. S L

26.7% - 637. . 200% 562

The profit before taxalion of £238.0 milfion (2015: £193.5 million) includes the Group's share of profits of joint ventures and
associales within continuing operations of £97.9 million (2016: £80.2 million) which is net of a fax charge of £40.9 miilion
{2015: £34.4 milillon).

The Group's overseas tax rales are {ypically a mixture of rates higher and lower than 2¢ per cent. They include the effect
of overseas lax benefits available to infrastructure projects.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

12, Intangible assets
£ milion
- '  ights Goodwll . 7"__-__"2:!’0(8]7
Cost
At 1 January 2016 T47.0 109.9 856.9
Disposals {0.2) {0.1) {0.3)
Additions 51.4 - 51.4
Acquired through business combinatlons 136.3 - 136.3
Exchange adjustments 161.0 240 175.0
At 31 December 2016 1,085.5 133.8 1,219.3
Accumulated amortization
At 1 January 2016 {216.1) . (216.1)
Disposals 0.2 . 0.2
Charge for the year (30.9) - (30.9)
Acquired through business combinations (52.1) - (62.1}
Exchange adjustments {39.5) . (38.5}
At 31 Dacemher 2016 {337.4) - (337.4}
Net book amount at 31 December 2016 .~ - - - ST I TeBA T 838 .. o 8E1S
Cost
At 1 January 2015 4241 374 461.5
Disposals 1.1} 0.1) {1.2)
Additions 708 - 70.8
Acquired through business comblnalions 254.5 733 327.8
Exchange adjustments (1.3} {0.7) (2.0)
At 31 December 2015 747.0 100.8 856.9
Accumulated amortlsation
At 1 January 2015 (194.4) - {194.4)
Disposals 1.4 - 11
Charge for the year (21.1) - {21.1)
Exchange adjustments 0.7) - {0.7)
Al 31 Dacember 2015 {215.1) - {215.1)
Net book amotint at 31 December 2016 =" ~. . - 77 s L LUUE31 - f088 . e418-

Al 31 December 2016, port concession rights with a carrying amount of Nit (2015: £4.0 million) are pledged to secure
bank loans {refer to note 19).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

12. Intangible assets {continued)

Impairment testing of goodwitl

Goodwill acguired through business combinations and port concession rights with indefinite useful fives have been
allocated to various cash-generaling units {"CGU"), which are reportable business units, for the purpeses of impairment
testing.

impairment lesting is done at operating port {or group of ports) level that represents an individual CGU. Delalls of the
CGUs by operating segment are shown below:

© . Gashgenerating Units squegelad by opatebag sognens - - - CTVIRIOMS - . Discountrate - Porpehity growihrefe .

Cemin T - . %
2018
Europe and Africa 14.6 6.0-8.0 2,626
Australia and Americas 106.6 6.5-7.6 2.6
Asla Pacific and Indtan subcontinent 12,7 9.0-13.0 2.6
Tolal 133.8
2015
Europe and Africa 10.8 5.5-7.5 2.5-26
Australia and Americas 86.5 6.0-7.0 25
Asia Pacific and Indlan subcontinent 12.6 8.5-12.0 2.5
Total 109.9

The recoverable amount of the CGU has bean delermined based on their value in use calcufated using cash flow
projections based on the financial budgets approved by the Board covering a three year period and a further outlook for
five years, which is considered appropriate in view of the outlook for the Industry and the long-term nature of the
concession agreemerts held i.e. generally for a pefiod of 25-50 years.

tn the view of the Board, the perpetual growth rate is the minimum growth rate expected to be achieved beyond the eighl
year period.

Koy assumptions used in the value In use calculations
The following describes each key assumption on which the Board has based ils cash flow projections to undertake

impairment testing of goodwill and porl concession rights with Indefinite useful lives.

Budgeted margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned to the budgeted margin is the average gross margin
achieved in the year immedialely before the budgeted year, adjusted for expected efficiency improvements, price
fluctuations and manpower costs,

Discount rates — These represent the cost of capital adjusted for the respective location risk factors. The Group uses the
post-tax industry average Welghted Avarage Cost of Capital which reflects the country specific risk adjusted discount
rate.

Cost inflation — The forecast general price index is used to determine the cost inflation during the budget year for the
relevant countries where the Group is operating.

Perpetuity growth rate — In the Board's view, the perpetuity growth rate is the minimum growth rale expected to be
achieved beyond the eight year period. This is based on the overall regional economic growth forecasted and the Group's
existing Internal capacity changes for a glven region. The Group also takes into account competition and regional
capacily growth to provide a comprehensive growth assumption for the entire porticlio.

The values assigned 1o key assumptions are consistent with the past experience of the Board.
Senshtivity to changes In assumptions

The caleulation of value in use for the CGU is sensilive to fulure eamings and therefore a sensitivity analysis was
performed. The analysis demonstrated that a 10% decrease in earnings for a future peried of three years from the
reporting date would not result in impairment assurning that the projected growth rate from year four onwards will recover
to original levels. Similarly, an Increase of 0.25% in discount rate and decrease of 0.25% in perpetuily growth rale would
not result in Impairment.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

13. Property Plant and Equipment

£ mition
piopaty sips | Fenlaed  Cosaionk Tom
Cost
Al 1 January 2016 798.6 165.5 1,248.5 158.1 2,361.7
Additions . 1.5 14.0 213.7 229.2
Disposal through business combinations {14.5) - {8.8) - {23.3)
Transters from capltal work-In-progress 9.3 - 79.5 (89.1) -
Disposals {0.8) 0.9) (3.5) - (5.2)
Exchange adjustments 113.7 28.2 5.7 13.4 181.0
At 31 Dacember 2016 906.3 184.3 1,386.7 2971 2,743.4
Accumutated depreclation
At1 January 2016 (181.6) 44.7) (320.5) - (646.8)
Charge for the year {27.4) (10.1) {66.3) - (93.8}
Disposal through business comblinations 14.5 - 8.1 - 22.6
Disposals 0.4 0.9 ER - 4.4
Exchange adjusiments {30.3) (8.4) (2.6) - {41.3)
At 31 Dacember 2016 {224.4) (62.3) (368.2) - (654.9)
Het book amount at 31 December 2016 - - 6819 “A220 9875 ., .. 2974 2,080.8
Cost
At 1 January 2015 789.9 165.0 1,216.7 54.8 2,2264
Additions 0.3 3.3 8.4 145.0 157.0
Acquisilions through business combinations 0.7 - 13.7 7.0 223
Transfers from capilal work-In-progress 5.8 131 28.3 (47.2) -
Disposals (0.1} (24.2) {10.2} - {34.5)
Exchange adjustments 2.0 {1.9) {8.4) (1.4} (9.5)
At 31 December 2015 798.6 155.5 1,248.5 159.1 2,361.7
Accumulated dapreclation
Al 1 Janvary 2015 {157.8) (50.1} (281.4) - (489.3)
Charge for the year {23.8) (8.9} (55.6) - (88.3)
Impaiment losses - - (0.4) - (0.4}
Acquisitions through business combinations 0.1 - 0.7 - 08
Disposals 0.1 12.¢ 9.0 - 22,9
Exchange adjustmenls (0.2} 1.4 6.3 - 7.6
At 31 December 2015 (181.8) (44.7) (320.5) - (546.8)
- Nel book amount at 31 December 2615 - 6170 - 1108 - 9280 ¢ 45910 ¢ 18149

At 31 December 2016, properly, plant and equipment with a carrying amount of £1,498.8 million {(2015: £1,306.1 million) are
pledged to secure bank loans (refer to note 19). Al 31 December 2016, the net carrying value of tha Teased plant and equipment

and other assels was £226.0 milion {2015: £79.7 million}.

Borrowing costs capitalised to property, plant and equipment amounted te £13.5 million (2015: £13.7 million) with a capitalisation

rate in the range of 2.27% to 3.84% per annum {2015: 2.94% to 3.81% per annum).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
14. Investmants in aquity accounted investees
The following table summarises the financial information for equity-accounted investees, adjusted for fair value

adjustments at acquisition and reconciled to the carrying amount of Group's interest in equity-accounted invastees as
included in consalidated staternent of financial position:

" - £miRlop

Cost at 1 January 2016 446.5
Reclassed to Loans and Racelvables (64.3)
Addlitions 26
Share of profits for the year 97.9
Share of actuarlal losses, net of tax 1.0
Share of movement in effective portion of cash-flow hedges, net of tax {t.0)
Share of movemsnlt in other reserves 6.2
Dividends {109.7)
Exchange adjusiments 60.6

Costat 31 December 2016 - - - - - T T e T 438.7
Cost at 1 January 2015 359.8
Reclassed to Loans and Receivables -
Additions 36.1
Share of profits for the year 80.2
Share of actuarial losses, net of tax (0.5)
Shere of movemant In effective padion of cash-flow hedges, net of lax (0.9}
Share of movement in other reserves 20
Dividends (23.9)
Exchange adjustmenis (7.3}

‘Costat31 December20t5: .- . . . 0o e T - AdBS

Summarised financiaf information for equlty accounted Investess:
£ milkon
e o Y Ame. o 20i5

Sales and other oparaling revenues 427.0 355.4

Prafit before interest and taxalion 164.0 126.8

Net Finance costs {14.4) {12.0)

Praofit before taxation 139.6 1148

Taxation {40.9) (34.4)

"Profit for the year T R T 98T 804

Non-current assets 719.3 6038

Current assels 264.5 2148

Tolal assets 983.8 823.6

Current Hablitles {i21.7) (96.4)

Non-currant liabllitios {423.4) (346.0)

Total liabllities {545.1) {442.4)

Net assots o 438.7 3812
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

15. Deferred tax assets and labilties

£ ritlion
‘Assels  Liabllities - Net2016

Property, plant and equipment (1.5} 66.9 65.4
Intanglbla assote {6.7} 78.7 78.0
Invastment in equity accounted Investees . 16.9 16.2
Employee benefits (9.6} - {9.8)
Provisions (1.3) - 1.3)
Tax value of loss carded forward recognised (17.4) - {(17.4)
Financlal Instruments (19.9) 10.1 (9.8}
Caplial galn . 3194 319.4
Other (13.0) 311 181
Total tax {assets)liabilitles (63.4) 5221 458.7
Tax affset g8z 634 :

- 458.7 458.7

Total tax {assets)ilabllities after offset

‘Assets  Liabltiles - Net2015 .

Proparly, plant and equipment .8 54.9 53.1
Intangible assets ©.8) 65.1 64.5
Invesiment in equity accounted inveslees - 12.9 12.9
Employee benefits (4.8} - 4.8)
Provislons (1.0 - (1.0)
Tax value of loss caried farward recognised (16.2} - (16.2)
Financial Inslruments (9.7} 0.1 (9.8)
Capital gain - 266.0 286.0
Other (1.8) 235 24.7
Tolsl tax (assets)iabilites (35.9) 4225 386.6
Tax offset 35.8 {35.9) -

Total tax (assets)/liabilities after offset _(0'1)‘ ‘ se6.7 - 336_-6_

Deferrad tax is not recognised on losses of £422.0 million (2015: £469.0million) where utilisation is uncertain, either because
they have not been agreed with tax authorities, or because the likefihood of future taxable profits is not sufficiently certain, or
because of the impact of tax holidays.

Under current legislation, £274.0m (2015; £406.1m) of the tax losses shown above can be carried forward Indefinitely.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
16. Deferred tax assets and liabilities (continued)

Movemant in deferred tax during the year

£ millien
- Balance - - }
et T
: January ' Exchange. Recognl
- - 2016 - movements - “inincoms

Properly, plant and equipment 5341 6.4 0.2) .
Intanglble assels 84.5 15.4 (1.9} - - 78.0
Investmant in Jeinl venfures and assoclates 12.9 3.0 b - - 15.9
Employee benefits (4.8) 0.3) 01 - (4.6) 8.6)
Provislons (1.0} (0.1 0.2 - - {1.3)
Tax value of loss cariled lonvard {16.2) 27 2.2 {6.1) - (17.4)
recognised
FInancial instruments (9.8) - 1.7 - (1.9 (9.8)
Capita! gain 266.0 53.4 - - - 319.4
Cther 217 (2.3) {0.6) - .7 18.1

386.6 8.2 1.4 0.0 (7.2} 458.7

Total tax liabllitiesf{assets)

Fraperly, plant and equipment 56.0 0.7) (3.6) 1.4 . 53.1
ftanglble assets {0-4) (3.5} 0.7 69.1 - 84.5
tnvestrant in Joint ventures and assoclates 17.2 o1 (4.2) - - 12.9
Employee benefits (58 - 0.3 - 0.7 4.8)
Provislons (1.9) 01 0.8 - . .9
Tax value of loss carried forward {11.8) 04 {4.5) - - (16.2)
recoghised

Financial Inslruments (12.8) {0.1) - - 3.3 (9.6}
Capital gain 252.9 13.4 - - - 266.0
Other 17.2 - 48 - 0.3 2.7
Total lax liabilities/; {s) 310.6 8.9 (7.1} 70.5 37 366.6
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued}

16. Trade and other receivables
£ miffon
T w% . o .. - ®E

LT o dmdenel . Gwed | Hevamm
Trade receivables 112.9 - 86,7 -
Other receivables 76.8 96.3 635 14.7
Prepayments and accrued income 23.0 0.8 30.8 086
Employee benefit asssts - -

R T T e 2127 -0 LA - IEe s 183
Loans to Parent Group undeartakings:
Loans to the intermediate parent company 1,618.3 - 2,472.1 -
Loans to fellow subsidiaries of the Group's ullimale 166.3 1.4 130.7 i7.a
controlling entily
: R - AT86 . - 1A T 2,6028 B I <

Trade receivables are reported net of a provision of £3.4 million (2015: £1.3 million).

The Group's exposure to credit and currency risks and impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are
disclosed in note 29.

Amounts owed by Group undertakings bear interest in reference to LIBOR and are repayable by mutual agreement of
the refevant parties. The directors believe that these loans are recoverable which is supported by cash repayments of
£1,140.5 million received in 2016 (2015 £141.2 million).

17. Other investments
£ mitton
2 S ‘ TR0 2018
Debt securities held-to-maturity - 5.1
Flnancial assets at fair value through profit and lass 24,3 24.2
(a) The movement in dabt securities hald ta maturity mainly relates to redemption of £ 5.6 million (2015: £ 0.4
million} during the year.
(b} The movement schedule for financial assets at fair value through profit and loss is as given below:
E mifiton
- ‘ L ‘ . C2016 0 - 2015
Balance as of 1% January 24.2 242
Exchange adjusimenis 0.1 -
Balance as of 39 Decamber . . . . o - ie o DTt T am L 242

The Group's exposure 1o credit, currency and inlerest rate risks related to other investments is disclosed in note 29.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

18. Cash and cash equivalents

£ mifion

- : . Sl 2016 N ]

Bank balances 211.7 100.8
Call deposits 108.3 185.7
Deposits under fien 16.0 i2.9
Cash and cash equivalents as per the statement of financial position 3420 289.4
Bank overdrafis - -
Cash and cash equivalents as per the consolidated slafement of cash flows  ~ . 7 420 - .. 72604

The Group's exposure fo interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities are disclosed in
note 29.

The deposits under lien are placed to collaleralise some of the borrowings of the Group {refer to note 19).
19. Interest bearing loans and borrowings
This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group interest bearing loans and borrowings,

which are measured at amortised costs. For information about the Group's exposure to interesi rate and foreign
currency risk, see note 29.

e
Non-currant
Secured bank lpans 1,072.2 6924
Mortgage debenture slack 14 14
Unsecuyred loan 2.1 7.7
Unsscured bank loans 439.8 3523
Unsecured bond Issues 6.4 54
Finance lease liabililies 10.6 13.9
Total non-current 1,639.5 10734
Current
Secured bank loans 218 234
Unsecured bank loans 12.% 6.4
Finance lease [iabilities 5.5 4.4
Total current 40.2 34.2
Total current and non-current - . . L o . o o L6797 - 11073
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
19. Intarest bearing loans and borrowings {continued)

The Group classifies certain property, plant and equipment as finance leases where it retains all risks and rewards
incidental to the ownership. The net carrying values of these assets are disclosed in note 13.

Future minimum [ease payments under finance leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease paymens
are as follows:

£ miticn

" Present
- valuedf -

© Mininim Lease

“ Paymenis.

LTI S ‘ v § TR - 2018
Less than one yaar 6.2 {0.7} 5.5
Betwean one and five years 7.8 (1.3} 8.6
More than five years 7.6 {3.6) 4.0
Total 21.7 (5.6) 16.1
Less than one year 6.2 {1.2} 50
Between one and five years 12.8 (2.1) 10.8
More lhan five years 5.4 2.9 2.5
Total 245 (6.2 18.3

Certain property, plant and equipment and port concession rights are pledged against the facililies obtained from the banks
{refer to note 12 and note 13). The deposits under lien amounting to £ 16.0 millien (2016: £ 12.9 millien) are placed fo
collateralise some of the borrowings of the Group {refer to note 18}

There has been no issuance or repayment of debl securities In the current year (2015 Nif). At 31 December 2018, the
undrawn committed borrowing facililies of £ 82.6 million (2015: £ 244.3 million) were available to the Group, in respect of
which all conditions precedent had been met.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

20. Trade and other payables

£ migon

I 2015 - R S
) ' Curent . Homcurrent - Cument :--P-lqﬁ-cm'ranl
Trade payables 50.3 - 49.0 -
Other unsecured payables 158.5 10.8 97.6 1.6
Accruals and deferred income 136.8 a3 105.0 85
Falr value of derivative finanelal Instruments 3.8 853 0.8 53.5
T R L -A584 - 1045 .. 2624 © 736

Loan from Parent group undertakings
Loan from fellow subsidlaries of the Group’s 774 238.3 51.8 201.8

uilimate conirolling entity
e T T T T4 .o-.2\3 . B8 - 2018

The Group’s exposure to currency and liquidity risk relaled to frade and other payables is disclosed in note 28.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

21, Non-controlling interest

mlllion
L2015 - 2015 .
Cther - .
individually’ - Gross .
immaterial =~ Total
subsidiaries* .. . .
- 'Qar{ying'amounlbeCIasalst T Z'-:Z‘“'“"“"' 7 ) - o
Income statement informalion
Revenue - - - 110.8 - 10.8
Profit after tax - - - 127 - 12.7
Other comprehansiva income, net of tax - - - 0.4 - 0.4
Tota! comprehensive Income (100%), net of . 134 13.1
fax : .
Profit allocated to NCI : 28.5 2155 6.2 13.0 19.2
QC! aHocated to NCI - 2.2 2.2 0.2 (3.0 (2.8)
Total comprehensive income allocatedfo 7~ 7. T T o T a0t YR f.,","1'0 o 164

_NCL -

* There are no material subsidiaries with an NC1 in {he Group.

22. Issued capltal and reserves

Share capltal and share premium account

The balances classified as share capital and share premium account inciude the total net proceeds on issue of the
Company's equily share capital. The authorised share capilal is £953.2 million (2015: £953.2 million) being the allotted
capital together with £110.0 million (2015: £110.0 million) of unclassified shares. The nominal value of each class of
share unit is £1. The number of shares held is 843.2 million. The allotted, calted up and fully paid share capital was
£843.2 million as at 31 Decamber 2016 (2015: £843.2 million}

Translatlon reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations that are not integral to the operations of ihe Company, as well as from the effective portion of
translation of liabilities that hedge the Company’s net investment in a fareign subsidiary.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the cumulative net change in the fair value of cash flow hedging
instruments related to hedged transactions that have not yet occurred.

Other reserves

Other reserves of £170.5 million (2015: £170.5 milion) is made up of the Group’s merger reserve of £454.2 million
{2015: £454.2 million) and capital reserve £161.4 milion {2015: £181.4 million), less goodwill deducted from reserves of
£451.9 million {2015; £451.9 million), all arising under UK GAAP prior to transition to IFRS, plus a capital redemption
reserve of £3.3 million (2015: £3.3 million) and amounts relating to share based payments of £3.5 million (2015
£3.5 miltion).
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)

23. Employees

£ mikon
Employsecasls - - - - .- T T L T 2018 T IT
Wages and salaries 2271 1866
Social securily cosls 10.9 10.3
Pension and other post-relirement benefit costs 23.8 249
eI Tl T ) L L : o648 . . f_""2,2:1.8
Average number of employees at 31 December - . ‘ T _ L T e
UK full time 1,069 1,089
UK parttime 14 20
Overseas full time 4,889 4,699
Oversees part time 162 148
Sea Staff N 363
R S T ST s 6484 - - - - B298°

24. Empleyee benefits

The Group participates in a number of pension schemes throughout the world.
a) P&0 UK Scheme

This principal scheme is located in the UK (the “P&0 UK Scheme®). The P&O UK Scheme is a funded defined
benefit scheme and was closed to routine new members on 1 January 2002 and to future accrual on 31
December 2015. The pension fund is legally separated from the Group and managed by a Trustee board. The
assets of the scheme are managed on behalf of the Trustee by independent fund managers.

Formal actuarial valuations of the P&0O UK scheme are normally carried out friennially by quafified
Independent actuaries, the latest regufar valuation report for the scheme being at 31 March 20186, using the
projected unit credit mathod. P&QO is currently negotiating with the Trustees to agree to a monthly deficit
payment plan.

In Decermber 2007, as part of a process developed with the Group to de-risk the pension scheme, the Trustee
transferred £800 million of P&O UK Scheme assels to Paternoster (UK) Ltd, in exchange for a bulk annuity
insurance policy to ensure that the assets (in the Company's statement of financial position and in the
Scheme) wilf always be equal to the current value of the liability of the pensions in payment at 30 June 2007,
thus removing the funding risks for these liabllities.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
24, Employee henefits {continued)
)] Merchant Navy Officers’ Pension Fund (“MNOPF")

The Group participates in various industry multi-employer schemes, the most significant of which is the
Merchant Navy Officers' Pension Fund (lhe “MNOPF Scheme®) and is in the UK. These generally have assets
held in separate frustee administered funds which are legafly separated from the Group.

It is an indusiry wide multi-employer defined benefit scheme in which officers employed by companies within
the Group have participated.

The scheme was divided into two sections, the Old Section and the New Section, both of which are closed to
new members.

The Old Section completed a buy-out of all its members benefit obligations in July 2014, following which the
Qld Section was wound up. Therefore, no further liabilities were assigned to the Group in respect of the Okd
Section.

The most recent formal actuarial valuation of lhe New Section was carried out as at 31 March 2015. This
resulted in a deficit of £3.0 million. The Trustee Board believe their investment strategy will address this deficit
and therefore has not tssued deficit contribution notices to employers in respect of the 2015 actuarial
valuation. The New Section closed te future accrual in April 2016,

Following earlier actuarial valuations in 2009 and 2012 the Trustee and Employers have agreed conlributions,
which will be paid to the Section by participating employers over the period to 30 Seplember 2023. These
contribulions include an allowance for the impact of irrecoverable contributions in respect of companies no
longer In existence or not able to pay their share. The Group's aggregated outstanding contributions from
these valuations are payable as follows: 2017 to 2020 £4.2 mifiion per annum and 2021 to 2023 £0.8 million
fer annum.

The Trustee set the payment lerms for each participating employer in accordance with the Trustee's
Conlribution Collection Policy which includes credit vetting.

The Group's share of the net deficit of the New Section at 31 December 2016 is estimated at £.44%.

During the year, Group has accounted £73.0 million for an additional defined benefit obligalion in regards to
reapportionment of deficit contribution from a related party. Post the balance sheet date, in April 2017, this
liability was transferred o the ultimate controlling parent undertaking.

9] Marchant Navy Ratings' Pension Fund (*"MNRPF”)

The Merchant Navy Ratings' Pension Fund (*the MNRPF Scheme™) is an industry wide multi-employer
defined benefit pension scheme in which sea staff employed by companies within the Group have
participated. The scheme has a significant funding deficit and has been closed lo further benefil accrual.

Certain Group companies, which are no longer current employers in the MNRPF had setiled their statutory
debt obligation and were not considered to have any legal abligation with respect to the on-going deficit in
the fund. However, following a legal challenge, by Stena Line Limited, the High Court decided that the
Trustees could require all employers that had ever participated in the scheme to make contributions to fund
the deficit. Aithough the Group appealed, the decision was not overturned,

The most recent formal actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 March 2014, The Group's deficit
contributions arising from this valuation totalled £28.3 miHion {equating fo 7.0% share of the net deficit), The
contributions due to the Scheme will be paid over the period to 31 October 2022. Deficit contributions of
£10.0 miliion were paid into the Scheme in 2016. The Group's aggregated outstanding conlributions from
these valuations are payable as follows: 2017 to 2022 £3.5 million per annum. The Trustes set the payment
terms for each participating employer in accordance with the Trustee's Conlribution Collection Policy which
includes credit vetting.
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24, Employee benefits (continued)

d) Others

The Group also opsrates a number of smaller defined benefit and defined contribution schemes.

The board of a pension fund in the UK is required by law to act in the best interests of the fund participants
and is responsible for selling certain policies (e.g. investment, contributions and indexation policies) and
determining recovery plans if apprapriate.

These defined benefit funds expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk,
interest rate risk and market (investment) risk. In addition, by participating in certain multi-employer industry
schemes, the Group can be exposed to a pro-rata share of the credit risk of other participating employers.

Reconciliation of assefs and liabilitles racagnised in the consolidated statement of financial position

The amounis recognised in the halance sheel are as folfows

£ mifion
T “sote, .. . . . l=ois’
MNon-current
Defined benefit schemes nel liabilities 254.4 120.9
Liability in respect of long service leave 0.3 03
Liabllity for other non-cumrent defetred compensation 0.2 0.9
254.9 1221
Current
Liability for current defered compensation 6.6 8.8
Netflability ... ..o ... ..o loUUe T R8s . LT 71288
Reflected In the consolidated statement of financia! position as follows:
Employee benefit liabilittes: non-carant 254 9 1221
Employee benefit liabllities: current 6.8 6.8
oL T T T e ' T 2818 v 1289

Long term employee benefit expense recognised in consolidated stalement of profit and loss consist of
following:

£ willon

S Ll I . - L2016 - - T 2018
Defined benefit schemes 4.9 5.8
Defined contiibution schemes 76 7.5
Other employes benefils 8.6 9.7
214 23.0
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24. Employee henefits (continued)

The re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability reccpnised in the statement of other comprehensive
income is as follows:

£ miion

N , S T 2048 0 - 2015
Actuarial lossi/(gain) recognised in the year 2726 (53.2)
Relturn on plan assels lesserf {greater) than the discount rale (111.5) 30.1
Change in share in multi-employer schema (0.2) (0.9}
Movement In minimum funding liability (9.1} 18.8
1518 3.8

Actuarial valuations and assumptions

The latest valuations of the defined benefit schemes have been updated to 31 December 2016 by qualified
independent actuaries. The principal assumptions are included in the table below. The assumptions used by
the acluaries are the best estimates chosen from a range of possible actuarial assumptions, which, due to the
timescale covered, may not necessarily be borne out in practice.

CIM NOPFSchame " Other Scheme

T T Pao UK Schome. . .-
' 20167 2016 T 02015 2018 .. 2015

e , 2016 . -
Discount rates 2.60% 2.50% 3.70% 2.70% 3.490%
Discount rates - Bulk Annvity Asset 2.40% nfa n/a nfa nfa
Expected rates of salary Increases * n/a na n/a nfa  3.00% 3.20%
Penslon increases:
- Deferment 3.00% 2.80% 2.50% 2.20% 3.20% 3.00%
- Payment 3.00% 2.80% 3.40% 3.10% 3.20% 3.00%
infatian 3.60% 3.20% 3.60% 3.20% 3.30% 3.20%

* The P&0O UK Scheme and MNOPF were closed to fulure accrual as at 31 December 2016, so future pay
increases is not relevant.

The assumplions for pensioner longevity under both the P&0O UK scheme and the MNOPF scheme are based
on an analysis of pensioner death trends under the respective schemes over many years.

For illustration, the life expectancies for the two schemes at age 65 now and in the future are detailed in the
table below. :

CMate 0 T u T Female ]
Age 65 now Age 65 '::r‘n io years' Agg‘g 5 ?g}gasr?
me

2016
P&Q UK scheme 223 245 24.3 266
MMNOPF schame 23.0 259 26.4 29.2
2016
P&0 UK scheme 234 28.5 25.8 28.9
MNOPFE scheme 22.7 256 26.3 293

At 31 December 2016 the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 17.3 years (2015:
15.8 years).
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24, Employee henefits (continued)

Reasonably possible changes to one of the actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant (in
practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated}, would have
increased the net defined benefit liability as al 31 December 2016 by the amounts shown below:

£ miion

o8- - o 2015

0.1% reduction in discount rate 172 12.3
0.1% increase in inflation assumption end related assumptions 104 54
0.25% p.a. increase In the fong term rate of mortality improvement - 144 7.9

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensiivity analysis did not change compared o
the previous period.

The schemes’ strategic asset allocations across the sectors of the main asset classes are:

. PEOUKScheme . MNOPFScheme g Otver  ToallEar
R £mlifon " - T mMlen - o U Emillen  E'milflon -
7016
Equities 350.4 M9 847 486.0
Bonds 153.1 60.7 117.0 330.8
Other 222 - 15.8 38.0
Value of insured pensioner liability 7976 - - 797.6
1,332.3 102.6 197.6 1,632.4
2015
Equities 306.3 54.7 64.7 425.7
Bonds 120.5 94.0 76.7 201.2
Other 207 - 22.8 435
Value of Insured pansloner Nabfity 763.3 - - 763.3
1,210.8 148.7 64,2 1,523.7

With the exception of the insured pensioner liability all material investments have quoted prices in aclive
markets.
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Recongillation of the opening and closing present valus of defined benefit obligations and fair value of scheme assets for
the period ended 31 December 2016:

£ milkon
- P8O UK. MNOPF schaime - g tarer < Total "
Present value of obligation at 1 January 2016 (1,263.0) {148.9) (205.0) {1,616.9)
Current service cost . - 2.1) {2.1)
Interest cost on Defined Benefit Obligation {45.5) (5.4) {7.6) {58.6}
Contributions by scheme paricipanis _ - 0.9) {0.9)
Effect of movement in exchange rates , - 3.0 3.0
Actuarial gainf{loss) - experlence 21.9 0.1 0.6 28
Acluarial gainf{loss) - demographic assumplions 51.0 1.4 - 53.3
Acluarial gainf(foss) - financial assumptions (261.6) (33.4) (63.5) (348.5)
Gain{Loss) due to change In share . (2.5) - (2.5)
Aclual benefil pald 67.6 7.4 8.3 83.3
Present vatue of obligation at 3% December 2016 {1,428.7) (181.3) (257.2) {1,867.2)
Falr value of scheme assets at 1 January 2016 1,210.8 1487 164.2 1,623.7
Interest income op assels 43.7 5.4 6.3 854

Return on plan assets (greater)fless than the discount
rate 1386 {50.6) 236 111.8

Aclual employer contibulions

8.4 4.2 14.7 273
Conlribulions by scheme participants R R 09 09
Effact of movemenlt in exchange rate - - (3.1 {3.1)
Actual benefit paid (67.6) (7.4) (8.3) {83.3)
Gainf{Loss) dus to change [n share - 27 - 2.7
Administration cosls incurred dufing period 1.6) (0.4) {0.8) 2.8}

Falr value of scheme assels at
31 December 2016 1,332.3 1026 197.5 1,632.4

Defined benefit schemaes net liabilities

{96.4) {78.7) {59.7) {234.8)
Mininum funding lability . (12.1) {7.5) (19.6)
Net ifability recognisad In the conscilldated statement
of financlal position as at 31 Decomber 2016 {86.4) (90.8) (67.2) {254.4)
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24. Employee benefits {continued)

Reconciliation of the opening and closing present value of defined benefil obligations and fair value of scheme assets for
the period ended 31 December 2015:

£ mition
o MNOPFSihomo gl Toti
Prasent value of obligation at 1 January 2015 1,328.7) {158.0} (209.9) {1,696.6)
Current service cost (0.4} - {2.8) (3.2)
Interest cost on Defined Benefit Obligation {45.6) (5.6} {7.7} {59.9)
Settlement of liabiliies 8.8 - - 8.8
Contributions by scheme participants . - 0.7) {0.7}
Effect of movemant In exchange rates 0.1 0.1
Acluarial gainv{loss) - experience 24.3 590 3.3 32.5
Acluarial gain/{toss) - demographic assumplions . - 1.3 1.2
Acluarial gain/(loss) - financlal assumptions 166 17 1.4 19.4
Galn/(Loss} due to change In share B, . 35 3.5
Actual benefi paid 64.0 74 6.8 77.9
Present value of obligation at 31 December 2015 (1,263.0) (148.8) (205.0) {1,616.9)
Falr value of scheme assets at 1 January 2015 1,274.9 138.5 158.2 1,671.6
Interest income on assets 44.8 50 5.9 66.7
Return on plan assets (greater}fiess than the discount rate {43.6) 56 (.1} (39.1)
Aclual employer contributions 8.7 7.3 106 26.6
Contdbution by scheme participants . 07 0.7
Effect of movement in exchange rate - 0.1 0.1
Actual benefit paid {64.0) (7.1} {6.8) (77.9)
Gain/(Loss) due to change In share - - (2.8) (2.6)
Settlament 8.4) - - (8.4)
Administralion costs incurred during period (1.6} 0.6) (0.8} (3.0)
Fair value of schems assets at
31 Decomber 2015 1,210.8 148.7 164.2 1,623.7
Delined benefit schemes net liabilities {52.2) {0.2) (40.8) (93.2)
Minimum funding liability - {20.8) [r)] (27.7)
Net liabllity recognised in the consollldated statement
of financial position as at 3t December 2015 {52.2) {20.8) {47.9) (120.8)
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24, Employee benefits (continued)

A minimum funding fability arises where the staiutory funding requirements are such that fulure contribulions in
respect of past service will result in a future unrecognisable surplus.

The below table shows the movement in minimum funding llability:

£ mion

oy L
Minimum funding liabifity as on 1 January {27.7) (8.5)
Inferest cost on minimum funding liabitily (1.0 (0.3)
Actuarial movement during the year 8.1 (18.8)

_ Minlmuim funding liability as on 31 December . 198y 0 - - (21D

It s anticipated that the company will make the foffowing contributions to the penston schemes in 2047

£ mitEon
CPBOUK - piyoor mania . Other 1
) . Scheme Mm?f"‘?*—‘“" . “Scheme . - ~Total
Pension scheme contributions 8.4 4.6 91 2241
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements {continued)

25,

Commitments

Capltal commitments

£ mition
: L . o 2016 - .. 2018
Estimated capital expenditure contracted for as at 31 Decamber 1377 205.5
Operating [ease commitments
£ mikion
A R _ : a1 . 2018
Within one year 121.7 106.0
Between one and five years 444.2 409.0
Between five and ten years 563.4 487.4
Between ten and twenty years 840.5 652.5
Betweean twenty and thirty years 437.5 446.0
Between thirty and fifty years 90.6 123.1
R I '-:-‘:“‘:2‘.'.28_7-9_”-7"7‘_':"_:_“”, Lo 22240

28,

(@)

)
{©

Contingent llabllitles

The Group has contingent liabililies amounting to £122.2 milion (20156 £22.5 million} in respect of payment
guarantees and £71.3 million (2015: £71.7 million) in respect of performance guarantees. The bank guaraniees
are arising in {he ordinary course of business fram which it is anticipated that no material liabililies wil arise.

The Group has contingent liabilities in respect of guarantees issued on behalf of equity accounted investees
amounting to £17.6 million {2015: £11.7 million).

Chennai Port Trust ("CPT") had raised a demand for an amount of £14.3 million (2015 £12.2 million) from
Chennai Conltainer Terminal Limited (*CCTL"), a Group Entity, on the basis that CCTL had failed to fulfil its
obligations in respect of non-iranshipment containers for a period of four consecutive years from 1 December
2003. CCTL had subsequently paid £7.6 mition (2015: £6.5 million) under dispute in 2008. CCTL. had initiated
arbitration proceedings against CPT in this regard. The arbilral tribunal passed its award on November 26, 2012
ruling In favour of CCTL. However, CPT appealed against this order, which was upheld by Madras High Court on
8 January 2014 and accordingly a prevision has been recognised against the above receivable. CCTL lodged an
appea! before the Division Bench of Madras High Court along with a stay petition on 31 January 2014, The Appeal
was taken up for hearing and admitted on 3 February 2014. CPT also made a statement before the Court that no
further action would be taken by CPT against CCTL. The Court has admitted the matter and is pending for final
hearing and disposal before the Division Bench of Madras High Court. The Group is confident that the case will be
in favour of CCTL.
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27. Related parties

For the purpose of these consalidated financial statements, parties are considered to he related to the Group, if the Group
has the abllity, direclly or indirectly, lo control the parly or exercise significant influence over it in making financial and
operating decigions, or vice versa, or where the Group and the parly are subject to common confrol or significant influence
l.e. part of the same Parent Group.

Related parties represent associated campanies, shareholders, directors and key management personnel of the Group,
the Parent Company, Ultimate Parent Company and enities jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties.
Pricing policies and lerms of thase {ransactions are approved by the Group's management. The terms and conditions of
the related party transactions were made on an arm’s length basis.

Parent entities

The largest graup of companies for which consolidated financial statements are prepared and in which the company is
consolidated under DP World Limited, a company limited by shares incorporated in Dubai, whose accounts are filed with
the Dubai Internaticnal Financial Centre. DP World Limited has 19.55% of its shares traded on the NASDAQ Dubai.

In the opinion of the directors the ultimate controlling parent underlaking as at 31 December 2016 was Port & Free Zone
World FZE, which owns 80.45% of DP World Limited. Port & Free Zone World FZE Is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dubai
World Corporation, which is the ultimate parent company of the Company, but which does not exert control over the
Company. References to “Parant group” therefore refer to the group headed by Porl & Free Zone World FZE.

Transactions with parent group

Amounts dye from the parent group undartakings are disclosed in note 6. Inlerest earned on these foans amounted to
£13 million (2015; £17.2 million). Amounts dus to the parenl group undertakings are disclosed in note 20, these foans bear
no interest.

Management fees of £16 million (2015: £12.3 million) were pald to Parent companies during the year.
Management feas of £2.6 million {2015; £1.4 million) were received from Parent companies during the year,

On 14 November 2018, the Group received 81.63% ownership of India Gateway Terminal, Cochin, and 26% ownership of
Visakha Container Terminal, Visakhapatnam irom DPW FZE through a gift deed, please refer nole 28 "Business
Combinations" for more information.

There were no other transactions with the parent group during the year {2015 Nil).

Transactlons with key managemenl personnel

Given the operationat and organisational structure of the Group, the key management personnel as defined under IAS 24
‘Related Parly Disclosures’ consists of the board of directors of the company together with the key managemant personnel
of PP World Limited.

The Group’s shara of the remuneration of these key personnel was £3.1 million (2015: £4.8 million). The remuneralion of
the Directors of the Company is disclosed in note M to the Company financial stalements.

The remuneration of the key management personnel of DP Worid Limited and any relevant transactions are set out in the
financial statements of DP World Limited and which are publicly available on thelr website at www.dpworld.com.

Other related party transactions
During the year the Group provided services including office accommodation and IT support 1o Istithmar P&O Estates an

affillated company, amounting to £0.2 million (2015: £0.3 million).

There are no other retated parly transactions during the year, {2015: Nil)
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28, Business acquisitions
2018:

() Acquisition of subsidiary under gift deed from Intermediate Parent Company

On 14 November 2016, DP World FZE (a fellow subsidiary of the Group) had gifted its 81.63% investment in subsidiary
india Gateway Terminal Ltd in Cochin, India under a gift deed at a nil consideration to an indirect subsidiary of POSNCO.
Tha Group recognised its share of the net liabililies of India Gateway Terminal Ltd totalling £26 milllon. This gift has
resulted in the consolidation of this subsidiary in the P&Q Group for the first time and along with the recegnition of non-
controlling interests in respect of remaining 18.37%.

{) Acquisition of equity accounted Invastees under gift deed from Intermediate Parent Company

On 14 November 2016, DP World FZE (a fellow subsidiary of the Group) had gified its 26% investment in equity accounted
investee Visakha Container Temminal in india under a gift deed at a nil consideration to an indirect subsidiary of POSNCO.,
The Investment in equity accounted investee was initially recognised al its carrying vatue in the books of Parent company
i.e, GBP 2.6m and equity accounted subsequentiy.

2015:

(i) Acquisitlons of new subsidiaries

On 18 August 2015, the Group has acquired 100% ownership of Maher Terminal's Fairview Container Terminal (Fairview)
in Prince Rupert (DP World Prince Rupert Inc.), British Columbia, Canada from Deutsche Bank for a total consideration of
£ 288.9 m (cash acquired on acquisition £ 1.3 m). The carrying value and fair valus of the identifiable assets and liabilities
on the date of the acquisition were as follows:

T Fairvalug -

Acquires's T !
arevin : racognised on
- carrying amount - aoqulsiion
gm T TEm
Assels
Property, plant and equipment 23.2 232
Port concession rights - 254.6
Accounls recelvables and prepaymeants 1t.2 11.2
Inventories 1.2 1.2
Bank balances and cash 1.3 13
Liabllitles
Pension and post-employment benefits (0.8) {0.8)
Income lax liabllilies (1.1} {1.1)
Deferred tax abilities {t.4) {67.5)
Accounts payable and accruals {6.4) (6.4}
Net assets 27.2 216.6
Goodwill arising on acquisitien 73.3
Total cost of acquisilion 288.9
287.4

Net cash outflowr on acquisition {net of cash acquired}

Froem the date of acquisition, Fairview has contributed a loss of £ 1.4m to the Group, If the acquisition had laken placa at
the beginning of the year, the profit of the Group would have increased by £ 8.4m and revenue would have increased by £
41.5m.
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28, Financial Instruments
(a) Credif risk
()] Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure fo credit risk at
the reporting date was:

£ mikion

R k Poo2es
Trade receivables 1129 86.7
Other racelvables 196.9 1006
Amounts owed by group companies 1,785.0 2,620.1
Cash and cash equivalants 342.0 2594
Dabt securities held-to-maturity . &1
Loan to jolnt ventures and associales 64.3 643

The maximum exposure to credit risk for Irade receivables at the reporting date by geographical region is as follows:

£ iriion
R R S0 T 200
Europe and Africa 49.0 42.0
Australfa and Americas 49.0 339
Asia Pacific and Indian subcontinent 14.8 10.8
1129 86.7
(i} Credit quality of financial assets and impairment losses
Movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of frade and other receivables during 1he year was:
£ mition
B TR SER R ey L R
At 1 January 1.3 13
Charge/ (revessed) during the year 2.4
At 31 December 34 1.3
The ageing of trade receivables at the reporling date was:
£ mifion
Toioa. . R - e . L. e
Neither past due ar impaired ' 61.1 516
Past due on the reporting date
Past due less than 30 days 325 23.2
Past due 31-60 days 10.1 1.7
Past due over 60 days 9.2 43
1128 88.7

{b) Liguidity risk

The following are the conlraciual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest payments and excluding
the impact of netting agreements:
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29, Financlal instruments (continued)

(b} Liquidity fisk {continued)

£ mifion
) Tane - ) .- 7 onete Twolo . * . Morethan.
- Earﬁﬂﬁg '"éon_ln-ciuu ‘WAthinone - . ™o five 7 rm
S } R gmounl 'c;;ﬂ Flows o y’eu: years ye'_auis o yuu .
Non-derivative financiat llabllitles
Trade and other payables {373.8} (373.9) {354.6) {19.2} - -
Unsecured bond Issues {6.4) (7.6) - - (0.1) {7.5)
Secured bank loans (1,094.0) [1,780.2) {77.5) {80.3) {68.2)  (1,664.2)
Unsecured loans and bank Joans (452.7) (499.4) .7 (230.3) (252.3) {5.1)
Finance lease liabllities {16.1) {27.0) {7.7) {4.8) (4.8) {9.6)
Morigage debenture stack {1.4) (8.9) {0.5) (0.5) (1.6 4.3)
Unsecured loan and loan stock {9.1) (9.1) {8.1) - - .
Flrancial Gurantees and Latler of Cradit - {212.9) - - - -
Bank overdrafts - - - - . .
Derivative financial liabilities
Intarest rate swaps (net cutflow) {89.1) {122.4) {21.2} (22.2) {66.2) {22.8)
{2,042.6) (3,039.3) (482.3) (357.4) (383.2) (1,603.5)
£ mifion
: 2015 B T C.r Onete L ‘Molo :Z'Mo_fiigﬁlahf'
: ’ Carrylng an_tl-;c:l.uu} . Within ona- o T\W - :f,[\ra-, . i‘"l\ge' -
- amount l; ’ c:shFlows : "";‘ygn'r.‘ Cyears ;ﬁeglri L ;&éé
Non-derivative financial Rabilities
Trade and other payablas (271.7) {271.7) (251.6) {20.1) - -
Unsecurad bond issues (5.4) (10.3} {0.4) {0.4) {1.3) 8.2)
Secured bank loans (715.8) {993.8) {66.9) {63.1) (265.4) {678.4)
Unsecured bank loans (358.7) (404.0) (39.8) {38.0) (312.3) (13.9)
Finance fease labilifles {18.3) (24.5) (6.2} (5.3) (7.6} (5.4)
Morgage debenture stock (14) (2.9 {0.1) 0.1 0.1} (2.4)
Unsecured loan stack .7 (7.7 {7.7) - - -
Financial Gurantees and Letter of Credit - {106.4) - - - -
Bank overdrafts - - - - - -
Derivative financlal abNities
Interest rate swaps (nel outflow} (54.3) {105.3) {18.9) {17.4) (43.2) (25.8)
(1.433.3)  (1,926.4) (391.6) (144.4) {649.9) (634.1}
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29. Financlal instruments (continued}

{c) Markel risk

] Currency risk

The following significant exchange rates were applied during the year:

Average rates: Reporiing date apot rales:
T . L mw L mws we oaais
usb 1.351 1.528 1.234 1.482
EUR 1.221 1.377 1171 1.361
AUD 1.897 2.036 1.708 2.026
INR 80.721 97.996 83.790 98.002
CAD 1.780 1.954 1.661 2.057

Foreign currancy sensitivity analysis

A 10 per cent strengthening of pound slerling against the following currancies at 31 December 2016 and 31 December
2015 would have Increased/{decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumnes that
all other variables, in particutar interest rates, remain constant. Further, as each entily in the Group determines its own
functional currency, the effects of translating financial assets and liabilities of the respeclive entfity would mainly impact
equity.

2016 £'million

T Coneoidaled .. Conscidaled 0

usp . 1.07
EUR 0.6 0.17)
AUD (3.8) -
INR 18.8 0.28
GAD 9.9 0.33
2615 E'mition

5D 10 X
EUR 1.1 {0.2)
AUD {1.9) .
INR 8.1 0.2
CAD 1.9 0.2

A 10% per cant weakening of pound sterling against the above currencies at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015
would have had the equal but oppusite effect on the above currencies fo the amounts shown above, on the basis that ali
other variables remain constant.
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29, Financial instruments (continued)

{c} Markel risk (continued)

(i) Intgrost rate rsk

At the reporting date the interest rata profile of the Group's interest bearing financial instruments was:

£ million
-Cayicgamont Camying aiouat

, B TR 1)
Fixed Rate insiruments
Financial assets - .
Financial Jiabilities (73.0) (61.9)
Tnterest rate swaps hedging floating rate debt 1,181.7) (914.7)

(1,254.8) {976.6)
Variable rate lustranients
Fivancial assets 1,993 2,788.7
Financial linbilities (1,506.6) {1,0454)
Tnterest rate swaps hedging fleating rate debt 1I81L7 914.7
1,584.4 2,658.0

The group has hedged its exposure to variable rates by entering into fixed interest rate swaps for a notional amount

equivalent to £1,181.70 million (2015: £914.70 million)

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

A change of 100 basis points {*bp®) in interest rates al the reporling date would have increased/(decreased) equity and
profit or foss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency

exchange rates, remain constant.

£ nitlion

o Income tptement - - :

ey

100bp decrcase ) Iwbpzncfease 'IDOi:p ;l@:'r‘;.ng'

- 'Jooibélih%e# .

31-Dec-16

Variable rate instrumments 5.8 (15.8) - -
Interest rate swaps - - 11.8 (11.8)
Cash fiow sensitivily net U158 - (IS8 0 S 18 (IL®)
31-Dec-15

Variable rate instnments 26.6 (26.6) - .
Interest rate swaps 0.1 0.1) 9.1 [CAN]
Cash fiow sensitlvity fiet 267 26m 91. @)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
29, Financial instruments {continued)
{d) Fair value of financial assets and liabililies

The lable below presents the carrying amounts and the fair values of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at
31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015:

£riittan
T I T (1 e
e I N S S ) s Bc-r'oik‘yaluu- ‘ ) ‘E;l.l!'ﬁifue:-r. _rir_-_r'rlioolwalugr ‘ . Eaiirvalilg";" -

Primary financial assets and llabllitles heid or Issued to finance tha Group’s oparations:

Trade and othar receivablas 309.8 300.8 196.3 196.3
Trade and other payablas {373.8) {373.8) {271.7) {271.7)
Unsecurad bond issuas 6.4) {6.4) {5.4) {5.4)
Secured bank loans (1.094.0) (1.004.0) (715.8) (715.8)
Unsecured bank loans {452.7) (452.7) {358.7) {358.7)
Finance lease liabilities (16.1) (16.1) {18.3) (18.9)
Montgage debenture stock {1.4) {1.4} (1.4) (1.4)
Unsecured loan stock - - - -
Amounts owed by group underlakings 1,785.0 1,785.0 2,820.1 2,620.1
Amounts owed to aroup undertakings (3157 (3156.7) {343.6) {343.6)
Amounts owed by equily accounted invastees 64.3 64.3 64.3 64.3
Cash and cash equivalents 342.0 342.0 269.4 269.4
Bank overdrafis - - - -
:::1;{::;1:[ assats held at fair value through profit 243 243 242 24.2
Debt securifies held-to-maturity - - 51 5.1
Derivative financlal inslruments hetd to manage the interast rate and currency profite:

Inlerast rate swap - liabililles (89.1) {89.1) (54.3) (54.3)
‘Cashflow senslivitynot = .~ - . " .. _:_ .. A762 . - - 4762 744027 - 14102

The following valualion methods have been used for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015:

The fair value of trade and other recsivables and trade and other payables approximates lo the book value due to the short
term maturity of these instruments.

The fair value of non-convertible bonds and dollar notes included in loans above is based on the guoted market price of
comparable debt. Other lpans include term loans and finance leases. These are largely at variable interest rates and
therefore the book value normally equates to the fair value.

The fair value of debl securilies held-to-maturity is based on the quoted market value cf similar assels. The falr value of
other investments is based on the year-end quoted price for listed investments and the estimated recoverable amount for
unlisted investments. The fair value of cash and bank overdrafts approximates to the book value due to the shart term
malurity of the instruments. The fair value of derivative financial instruments is based on the cash flows discounted to the
ret present value using prevailing market rates and foreign currency rates at the reporting dale.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
29, Financlal instruments (continued)

(d) Fair value of financial assels and ifabilities (continued)

Falr value hierarchy
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

s Level 1: quoted prices {unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or liabilities

+ Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable for the asset or liability, either
direclly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly {i.o. derived from prices)

«  Level 3: inputs for the asset or fiability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

£mition
Lavel ClovelZ o Level3
2016
Financlal assels held at fair value through profit and loss _ — 243
Debt securities held-le-malurity _ - _
Mortgage debenture stocks _ (0.8) _
Darivallve financlal liablillies _ (89.1) _
R e (89.9) 243
2018
Financial assels held al falr vatue through profit and loss _ _ 242
Debt securities held-to-maturity _ 5.1 _
Mortgage debenture stocks _ (0.8) _
Derivative financial liabilities _ {54.3) _
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements (continued)
30. Significant group entities

The extent of the Group's ownership in its various subslidiaries, equity accounted investees and
their principal activities are as follows:
Percentage of

Country of  equity share
Incorporation caphal owned Busingss description

Subsidiaries
Chennal Gontainer Terminal Private Ltd India 100% Centainer lerminal operalions
DP World Antwerp NV Belgium 100% Conlalner lerminal and other
' porl operalions

DP World Callao S.A. Peru 100% Container terminal operations
DP World (Canada) Inc Canada 100% Container terminals and stevedoring
DP World Ausiralia (POSN) Ply Ltd Australia 100% Holding Company
DP World Overseas Ply Limited Awustralia 100% Halding Company
DP World Maputo S.A. Mozamblque 60% Conlainer terminat operations
India Gateway Terminal Private |Imited India 81.63%  Container terminal operations
Mundra Internationat Container Terminal Private Limited  [ndia 100% Container terminal operations
Nhava Shava International Conlainer Terminal Private Ltd india 100% Container terminal operations
P&O Maritime Services Ply Ltd Australia 100% Paort and maritime services
P&G Maritime Services (PNG) Litd Papua New 100% Port and maritime services

Guilnea
Qasim International Container Terminal Pakistan Ltd Paklstan 55% Container terminal gperations
Salgen Premler Container Terminal Vielnam 80% Container terminal operations
Southampton Container Terminals tid England 100% Caontainer terminal operations
Terminales Rio de [a Plata SA Argentina 55.62% Container terminal operations
London Gateway Port Limited England 100% Container terminal operations
DP World Prince Rupert Inc. Canada 100% Container terminal oparations
Associstes
Antwerp Gateway NV Belgium 80%* Container terminal operations
Laem Chabang International Terminal Co 1.td Thailand 34.5% Container lerminal operations
Eurofos S.ARL France 50% # Camlainer tarminal operalions
Generale de Manutention Portuaire S.A France 50% # Ceonlainer tarminat eperations
Qingdao Glianwan Container Terminal Co. Ltd. China 29% # Container tarminal operations
Asian Terminals Inc. Philippines 41.72%  Contalner terminal operations
Portus Indico - Sociedade de Servicos Portuarios Lid UAE 48.6% Holding company
Visakha Container Terminals Private Limited india 26% Container terminal operations
Joint Ventires
PT Terminal Patikemas Surabaya Indonesla 49%, Container {erminal operalions

* Although the Group has more than 60% effective ownership interest In this entily, it is not {reated as a subsldlary, but instead treated as
an equity accounted investes. The underlying shareholder agreement does not provide significant control to the Group.

# Reflecls economic interest
3. Subsequent event

On 18 January 2017, the Group has sold its 100% stake In the operaling parts of BP World (Canada) Inc and DP Werld Prince Rupert
Inc.for a consideration of GBP 282 millien to OPW Investmenls B.V which |s ultimately held by DPW FZE.

In Aprit 2017 a liability was transfered to the ultimale controfling parent undertaking. See Note 24 (b}
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Company balance sheet

At 31 December 2016
£ million
INote . - - 2016 _-2016 -
Non-currant agsets
Tangible fixed assets E 8.5 7.0
Investments in subsidiaries F 1875.8 1,601.¢
Gther Investments F 23.8 238
Deblars G 16.2 -
1,722.3 1.632.7
Current assets
Debtors G 2,649.1 3,508.5
Cash and cash equivalents 11.2 2.2

2,660.3 3,510.7

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Other craditors 1 (880.2) {546 6)
(680.2) {646.6)

Net current asgets 1,980.1 2,964 1

Total tll‘_s"s‘éls_ laésgu_r‘rient]Iébll{liai',, . o 3702.4 o 4’.556.8 .

Creditors: amounts falling due In more than one year

Creditors: ambunts falling due in mora than one year | {0.4) (1)
Loans H (7.8) {6.8)

(8.2} (7.4}
Provisions for {iahilities J {10.5) (11.0)

Net assels belore pension llabilitles 1.683.7 4.578.4
A . [ .

Pensions and post-relirament benefits N {175.0) (881}

Net assets aftsr pension llablitles - - - - 36087 - 44903

Capital and reserves

Called up share capllal K (843.2) (843.2)
Share premium account L (815.4) (815.4)
Profit and loss account L {1,850.1) {2,831.7)
ATotalequity ~ -~ 7 LT R : (3,608.7)  {4,490.3)

he| macoounts ‘were, approved by a duly authorised-Committee of the Board of directoss and signed on its behalfl on
9.J0ne 2017 by

Dlre::tor
%7{: Peninsular and\Orishial Steam Navigalion Company — Company Number Z73
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Statement of changes in equity

E million

_Share -~ Share, _ Retalnad

capital " . pr
Balance as al 1 January 2045 ~ % - 00 o Do @432~ .8
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - -
Profit for the year - . 582.0 592.0
Total other comprehensive income, net of income tax - (6.5) (6.5)
“Total comprahensivamcome s - . .5855-- - 6855
Transactions with owners recerded directly In equity - - - -
-Dividends - . - -
At 31 December 2045~ T2l T 8154 28317 T 44908
At 1 January 2018 8432070 00 8964 28307 50 44903
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit lor the year - - 119.6 119.5
Tatal other comprehensive income, net of Income 1ax - (101.4} {101.1)
Total comprehénsive ingonte .. 1o 0 < - T |7 S -
Transactions with owners recorded directly In equity
-Dividends - - {1,000.0) (1,000.0)
- At 31 December 2016 - “g4327 - 8164 - 41,8604 T °3,508.7
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Notes to the Company financial statement

A. Accounting Policies

The Peninsular and Oriental Sleam Navigation Company {the ‘Company) is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
UK. The Company number is Z73 and the registered address is 16 Palace Street, London SWHE 5JQ, United Kingdom.

The following accounting policies have been applied consistently in dealing with items which are considered material in
relation to the accounts of the Company except as nofed below.

Basis of Preparation

These financlal stalements were prepated in accordance with Financial Reporting Slandard 107 Reduced Disclosure
Framework ("FRS 101"). The amendments to FRS 101 (2014/15 Cycle) issued in July 2015 have been applied.

In preparing these financial statements, the Company applies the recognition, measuremen! and disclosure requirements
of international Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ("Adopted IFRSs"), but makes amendments where
necessary in order to comply with Companies Act 2006 and has set out below where advantage of the FRS 101 disclasure
axemplions has been laken.

The Company's ultimate parent undertaking, DP World Limited, includes the Company In its consolidated financial
statemenis. The consolidated financlal statements of DF World Limited are prepared in accordance with IFRS and are
avallable to the public and may be cbtained from 18 Palace Streel, London SW1E 5JQ, United Kingdom.

In these financial statements, the Company has applied exemplions available under FRS 101 in respect of the following
disclosures:

- A cash flow stalemenl and related notes;

- Comparative period reconciliations for share capial, tangible fixed assets, and investments;
- Disclosures in respect of transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries;

- Disclosures In respect of capital management; and

- The effects of new but not yet effective [FRSs.

Going concern

The directors, having made enquiries, consider that the company has adequale resources to continue in operational
existence from 12 months of the date of approval of financial statement and therefore they conslder it appropriate to adopt
the going concern basls in preparing the accounts.

Functienal currency and foreign currency transactions

The functional currency of the Comipany is sterling. All financiaf informatian presented in Sterling is rounded to the nearest
million. Fransaction in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction.

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at that date and exchange differences, if any, are recognised in the ingome statement.

Non-monetary items in a foreign currency thal are measured at hislorical cost are translated to the functional currency
using the exchange rate at the dafe of inftial transaction and is nof retransiated af a fater dafe. Non-monetary items that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value was determined.

Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation of monetary items are recognised in the siatement of profit or loss,
except for differences arising on the retransiation of available-for-sale equity instruments, of a financial lisbility designated
as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation, or qualifying cash flow hedges, which are recognised directly in
statement of other comprehensive income
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

A. Accounting policies (continued)
Tangible fixed assets

These assels are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any provision for impairment. Assets constructed by
the Company are depreciated from the date that the assets are available for use.

Provision for any impairment in value of other fixed assets is made in the profit and loss aceount.

Depraciation is calculated to write off the coslt of these assels 1o estimated residual value, on a straight line basis over the
expected useful life of the asset concerned. The expected useful lives of properly and other fixed assets (reported within
plant and machinery, fixtures and fittings) vary up to 40 years.

The estimated useful lives of assels are as follows:

Asgets Ugeful life (years)
Buitdings 5-40
Plant and Machinery 3-25
Fixtures & Fittings 3-25

interest incurred in respect of assels under consiruction is capitalised inlo the cost of the asset concerned,
Investment in subsidlaries
Investment in subsidiaries are shown at cosi less provision for impairment.

Other investments

Other investments in debt and equily securities held by the Company are classified as being available-for-sale and are
stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loas being recognised directly in equity, except for impairment losses and, in
the case of monetary items such as debt securities, foreign exchange gains and losses. Whan these investments are
derecognised,

the cumuative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is recognised in profit or loss. Where these investments are
interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in profit or loss.

The fair value of financial instruments classified as available-for-sale is their guoted bid-price at the balance sheet date.
Available-for-sale Invesimenls are recognised/derecognised by the Company on the dale it commits to purchase/sell the
investments. Securities held-to-malurity are recognised/derecognised on the day they are transferred to/by the Company.
The Company doas not hold investments in debt or equity securities for trading purposes.

Trade debtors and other receivables

Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any Impalrment. Loans and receivables are financial assets with
fixed or determinable paymenls that are not quoted in an active markel. Subsequent {o Initial recognition at fair value,
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, bank balances and deposits.

Loans

Inlerest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to inifial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses.

Creditors
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Notes to the Company financial statement {continued)

A. Accounting policies (continued)

Creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services Ihal have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Credilors are recognised initially at fair value and subsequentty measured at amartised cost using the effeclive
interest method.

Pravisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of a past evenl, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to setlie the obligation, and where
tha amount of the associated costs can be reliably estimated. If the effect is material, provisions are calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows at a rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money,
and where appropriate the risks specific to the liability.

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expecied benefits to be derlved by the Company from a contract
are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the contract.

Leases

Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks and berefits of ownership of the assel are classified as
finance leases. These leases include Land and buildings which are financed by leasing agreements, giving rights
approximaling to ownership are capitalised as tangible fixed assets at cost less accumulated depreciation. On initial
recognition, the leased assets are measured at an amount equal to the fower of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payment, Subssquanat fo initial recognition, the leased asset is accounted for in accordance with the
accounting policy applicable to that asset. Minimum lease paymenis made under finance feases are apportioned between
the finance expanse and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expensa is allocated to each period during
the lease term so as to produce a conslant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Leasas where the Company does not retains substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified
as operating leases In operating leass, rentals payable are charged to the profit and loss account on a systematic basis
over the term of the lease.

Pensions and post-retirement benefits

Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan in which the company pays the fixed contribution fo a
separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Contributions, inciuding lump sum
payments, in respect of defined contribulion pension schemes and multi-employer defined benefit schemes where it is not
possible to identify the Company's share of the scheme, are charged lo the profit and loss account as they fall due.

Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a delined contribution plan.

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined henefit pension plans is calculated separately for each plan by
eslimating the amount of future benefit thal employees have earnad In return for their service in the current and prior
periods. That benefit is discounted to determine the present value, end the fair value of any plan assets Is deducted. The
caleulation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method, The discount rate is the
yield at the reporting date on AA credit rated bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Company's
obligations.
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

A. Accounting policies {continued)

Pensfons and post-retirement henefits

When the actuarial calculation resulis in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan er reductions in future contributions to the
plan. In order lo calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirements that apply to any plan in the Company. An economic benefit is available to the Company if it is realisable
during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

Where the present value of the deficit conlribitions exceeds the IAS 18 deficit an additional liability is recognised.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise of actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets {excluding inferssf) and the effect of the asset ceiling {if any, excluding interest) are recognised directly In
statement of other comprehensive income. The Company determines the net interest expense (income} on the net
defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure lhe defined benefit ebligation
at the beginning of the annual pericd to the then-net defined benefit lrability (assef), taking into account any changes in
the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past
service or 1he gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately In profit or loss. The Company recognise gains and
losses on the setttement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Impairment

The carrying amourts of the Company’s assels are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances
indicate thal the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable. If any such indication exisls, the asset's recoverable
amount Is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an assel or its income-generating unil exceeds Its
recoverable amount. impairment losses are recognised in the profit and loss account.

The recoverable amount of assels is the greater of their net sealisable value and valus in use. in assessing value in use,
the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the rate of return expected on an equally risky investment. For an asset that does not generate
largely independent income streams, the recoverable amount is determined for the income-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

For assets where the recoverable amount increases as a result of a change in economic conditions ar in the expected use
of the assel lhen the resultant reversal of the impairment loss should be recegnised in the current period,

An impairment loss is reversed only lo the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impalrment loss had been recognised.

Financial guarantees

This is where the Company enlers into financial guaranlee contracls to guarantee the indebtedness of subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associates. The Company considers these to be insurance arrangements, and accounts for them as such. In
this respect, the Company treats the guaraniee contract as a contingent liability uatil such time as it becomes probable that
the Company will be required to make a payment under the guaraniee.
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

A. Accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax Is recognised in the profit and loss account
excepl lo the extent that it refates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income, in which case it is
recognised directly in equily or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjusiment to {ax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary diferences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabifities for financiat
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The following temporary differences are not provided for:
the initial recognition of assels or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit other than in a business
combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries fo the extent that they will probably not reverse in the
foreseeable fulura. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of
the carrying amotint of assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or subslantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

A deferred tax assel is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

B. Audit fees

The Company's audit fee paid to its principal auditors, KPMG LLP was £30,000 {20156; £30,000), and non-audit fee
£179,796 (2015: £131,792).

C. Dividends
On 31 March 2016, the Company declared a dividend of £1,000 million (2015: £nil}.
D. Profit for the financial year

The profil for the financial year, being the profif on ordinary activities after taxation, was £119.5million (2015: profit of
£592 miltion).
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Notes to the Company financlal statement (continued)

E. Tangible fixed assets

£ miliion £ milllon £ mililon £ miflion £ miflion
] — ~ Fixlure & o
- ,Laqq énd o P!antrénd- ‘ Fitings .- :Undfe_g' 7 Total
Building .~ machinery, - * congtruction
Cost
At 1 January 2016 57 0.5 2.6 0.3 91
Additions - - - . -
Disposals - - -
At 31 December 2016 5.7 0.5 2.6 0.3 9.1
Accumulated depreclation
At 1 January 2016 (0.4} (0.3) (1.4) - (2.1)
Charge for the year (0.2} - {0.3) - (0.5)
At 31 December 2016 {0.6} {0.3) 1.7 _ (2.5)
et book amount at 31 December 2016 - ‘B4 - 02 Jes 0.3 . 6.8
Net book amount at 31 Dacember 2015 - . 54 0.2 - 12 7 S 0.3 7.0
F. Investments
£ million £ million £ million
SO investments . Investments © Tofal
"la subsldlary _cnunlisted -7 ‘
S : " “companies | companies : .
Al beginning of year 2.368.2 23.8 23920
Additions 121.3 - 121.3
Disposals (21.5) - {21.5)
- At 31 December 2016 2.468.0 238 2,401.8
Provisions
Al beginning of year (766.3) - (766.3)
Charga for the year (25.9) - {25.8)
AL31 Decamber 2016 g L (792.2) N C{re2.2) .
Not Investment at 31 December 2016 < 1,676.8 238 1,699.6
Net Investment at 31 December 2015 1,601.8 23.8 41,626.7

Additions to investment in subsidiary companies during the year relate to equity injection In St. John Canada through P80
Dover (Holdings) of £10.3 million and acquisition of European Ferries of £107.6 million and P&O Overseas Holdings

Limited of £3.4 millian.

Provisions recognised during the year represent an additional Impainment of investment in P&0 Property International
Limited of £46milion and an impairment of the investment In European Ferries Limited of £1.4 milion on account ot

reduction in the carrying value of the companies as at 31 December 2016.

Disposal during the year relates lo Linfire Limitad which was liquidated in August 2016. Consequently a provision of

£21.5million was released.
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

F. Investments (continued)
Investment in Subsidiary Companies

The following are subsidiary underakings of the Company, the investments in which are recognised as invesiments in
subsidiary companies.

Subsidlary undertakings Country of Percentage of share  Class of shares
Incorporation capltal owned by
the Company
Beaufort Insuranca Company Limited Unlted Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares and Preference
shares
British India Steam Navigation Company Limited United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
DP World (POSN}B.V. Netherands 94.00% Qrdinary-B shares
0P Waorld Australia {POSN) Ply Ltd Auvstiralia 160.00% Qrdinary shares
DP World Investments FZE United Arab 100.00% Qrdinary shares
Emirales
DP Waorld Limited United Kingdam 100.00% Qrdinary shares
DP Warld Logistics Eurepe GmbH Germany 100.00% Ordlnary shares
DP World Marifime B.V. Neiherlands 94.00% Ordinary-B shares
DP World Red B.V Netherdands 100.00% Ordinary shares
Eurapean Ferries Limited United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
Londan Gateway Limited United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
London Gateway Park Development Limlted United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
London Gateway Park Limited United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary sharas
London Gateway Park Managemenl Limiled United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
London Gateway Port Holdings Limited United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
London Gateway Services Limited United Kingdom 100.00% Qrdinary shares
P&O Bulk Shipping Limited United Kingdom 100.00% QOrdinary shares
P&O Delaware Holdings LLC Uniled Stales 100.00% Ordinary sharas
P&Q Dover (Holdings) Limited Uniled Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
P&O Overseas Holdings Limiled United Kingdom 100.00% Qrdinary shares
P&O Penslon Funds nvestments Limiled United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
P&O Ports Limited United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
P&0O Properties International Limited United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
P&O Scoftish Ferries Limiled United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
P&0 Tankships Invesiments Limited United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
Parikestrel Limited (belng wound up) United Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
POETS Fleet Management Limited Uaited Kingdom 100.00% Ordinary shares
Southampton Container Terminals Limited United Kingdom 49.00% A sharas

Investments in unlisted companies

The investment in unlisted companies principally represents a 3.15% ownership holding of DP World Austratia (Holding)
Pty Ltd. Investrment in unlisted companies are classified as being available-for-sale. The unlisted investment is measured
at cost instead of fair valua as the fnvestmant do not have a quoted market price in an active market and for which a fair
value cannot be reliably measured.
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

F. Investments (continued)

The following subsidiaries have elected the audit exemption {section 479A of the Companies Act 2006) where a parent
company (The Peninsular and Oriantal Steam Navigation Company) has provided a guarantee for all liabilities owing by
the respective entities:

~Company
Abbatt & Goldman 0094899
British India Steam Navigation Company Limited 0000133
BP World Limited 5291123
European Ferries Limited 00301725
P&0 Bulk Shipping Limited 00258949
P&0 Dover (Holdings) Limited 03492979
P&O Overseas Holdings Limited 00537728
P&O Ports Limited 00751061
P&O Properties International Limited 01099229
P&Q Scollish Ferries Limited 00071375
P&O Scollish Ferries Ship Management Limited SC10350
P&O Tankships Investments Limited 21605
Partkesfrel Limited (being wound up} 01824258
Poets Fleet Management Limited 161443
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Notes to the Company financial statement {continued)

G. Debtors

£ mitlion £ million £ million £ million
2016 Falling due 2015 Falling due
: R in more than U .
. Within cne year. . one year Total - “wilhin one year
Trade Debiors 5.2 - 5.2 28
Other receivables 6.9 16.2 221 6.1
Prepayments and accrued income 2.7 - 2.7 4.8
Amounts owed by group underiakings 2,636.3 - 2,635.3 3,494.8
oo - 2,649.1 : 16.2 ' 2,665.3 ' 3,50B.5
H. Loans
£ million £ million
A . 2018 2015
Creditors falling due more than one year
US dollar bonds 2027 {unsecurad) 64 5.4
Mortgage debentures stocks 1.4 14
7.8 6.8
Terms and debt ropayment schedule
£ milion £ milion £ milion £ million
_Currenc -~ Nominal -~ Yearof -~ Face - Carryln' . Face Carryln
©y 7 lnterest ~ maturit  value - ] Cvalue - vgo-
s rate ... .y B amount .. . amount
T AT T 0160 2016 0 2018 2015
US doliar bonds 2027 (unsecured) usD 7.9% R027 6.4 6.4 54 b.4
Mortgage debentures stocks GBP 3.56% Undated 14 1.4 1.4 1.4
7.8 78 [:X:] 6.8
I. Creditors
£ million £ millian £ million £ millfon £ million £ million
2016 Falling due o 2015 Falling due - . .
* “tamore than . : In mpré than
within one year one year Total within one year ofne year Total
Amounis owed to subsidiaries 659.9 - 659.9 5348 - 534.8
Soclal security and olher
taxation 11.5 - 1.5 39 - 390
Other unsecurad craditors 36 - 36 3.8 - 3.8
Accruals and deferied income 5.2 0.4 5.6 4.1 0.6 4.7
680.2 0.4 £80.6 546.6 0.6 547.2
680.2 04 680.6 546.6 0.8 547.2
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

J. Provisions for liabilities

£ million

Other .
Provisions
At 1 January 2016 1.0
Amounts provided in the income stalemant -
Utilized during the year (0.5)
At 31 December 2016 10.6

Provisions include £7.8 million {2015; £8.3 million) in respect of exposures arising from former employees working in
environments that used 1o contain asbestos. Liabilities expacted lo be incurred are in part coverad by insurance, Any
expected recoveries are included within other receivables

Utilized during the year relates to payment that were made in relation to asbestos claim.

K. Share capital

The allolled, called up and fully paid share capital is as foliows:

£ mitilen
ST U R R 201807 20157
Issued share capital (843.2 million ordinary shares of £1 each) 843.2 8421.2
L. Reserves
E million
Share - Proftand -~ - Total
. .premium - - .. o loss. L

B L _ , ~aecount . .. - - account AU
A1 January 2016 ' 815.4 28517 3,647.1
Dividends pald in 2016 {4,000.0) {1,000.0)
Actuariat gainsflosses - (101.1) (101.1)
Profit for the financial year - 119.5 119.6
At 31 Dacember 2016 Co : 8184 " 1,860.1 e - 2,6658.5

Share capital and share premium account

The balances classified as share capital and share premium account include the total net proceeds on issus of the
Company's equity share capital (see note K).
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Netes to the Company financial statement (continued)

Profit and loss account
Exchange movements in the profit and loss account include a gain of £7.8 million (2015: £23.8 millien gain) in respect of
foreign currency net lendings.

M. Directors’ emoluments

£ theusand
2016 2018
Directors' emeluments 3,085 1,510
Company contributions to money purchase pension schemes &8 86
- T o 3443 . 1,506
Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under:

o 7 ' Clooaote 2018
Defined benefit schemes - -
Money purchase schemes 1 1

EO I |

The aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director were £1,114,089 and no pension contribulion was made on his
behalf. {2015: The aggregate emolumentls of the highest paid director ware £1,140,147 and ne pension contribution was
made on his behalf)

The Directors hold a varlety of roles and responsibilities with the ultimate parant Group and net all are directly employed by

the Company. Therefore an estimation has been made of the proportion of their remuneration that relates to quallfying
services for the Company.
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

N. Pensions

The Company participates in a number of pension schemes throughout the world.
P&O UK Scheme

This principal scheme is located in the UK (the "P&0 UK Scheme®). The P&0 UK Scheme is a funded defined benefit
schems and was closed to routine new members on 1 January 2002 and ¢ future accruat on 31 December 2015. The
pension fund is legally separated from the Company and managed by a Trustee board. The assets of the scheme are
managed on behalf of the Trustee by independent fund managers.

Formal actuarial valuations of the P&0O UK scheme are normally carried out triennially by qualified independent actuaries,
the latest regular valuation report for the scheme being at 31 March 2018, using the prejected unit credit method. P&O is
currently negotiating with the Trustees to agree fo a monthily deficit payment plan.

In December 2007, as part of a process developed with the Company to de-risk the pension scheme, the Trustea
transferred £800 million of P&0 UK Scheme assets to Paternoster {UK) Ltd, in exchange for a bulk annuity insurance
policy to ensure that the assets (in the Company's slatement of financial position and in the Scheme) will always be equal
to the current value of the liabilily of the pensions in payment at 30 June 2007, thus removing the funding risks for these
liabilities.

Merchant Navy Officers’ Pension Fund ("MNOPF"}

The Company participates in various industry multi-ernployer schemes, the most significant of which is the Merchant Navy
Officers’ Pension Fund (the "MNOPF Scheme®) and is in the UK. These generally have assets held in separate trustee
administered funds which are legally separated from the Company.

it 1s an industry wide multi-employer defined benefit scheme in which clficers employed by company have participated.

The scheme was divided into two sections, the Qld Section and the New Section, both of which are closed to new
members.

The Old Section completed a buy-out of all its members benefit obligations in July 2014, following which the Old Section
was wound up. Therefore, no further liabllities were assigned to the Company in respect of the Old Section.

The most recent formal actuarial valuation of the New Section was carried out as at 31 March 2015. This resulted in a
deficit of £2.1 million. The Trustee Board believe their invesiment strategy will address this deficit and therefore has not
issued deficit contribution notices to employers in respect of the 2015 aciuarial valuation. The New Section closed to
future accrual in April 2016.

Following earlier actuarial valuations in 2009 and 2012 the Trustes and Employers have agreed contributions, which will
be paid to the Seclion by participaling employers over the period to 30 Septernber 2023. These contributions include an
allowance for tha impact of irrecoverable contributicns in respect of companies no longer in existence or not able to pay
thelr share. The Company's aggregated outstanding conlributions from these valuations are payable as follows: 2017 to
2020 £4.2 million per annum and 2021 to 2023 £0.8 million per annum.

The Trustee set the paymeant terms for each parlicipating employer in accordance with the Trustee's Conlribution
Collection Policy which includes credit vetling.

The Company's share of the net deficit of the New Secticn at 31 December 2016 is estimaled at 5.44%.
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

N. Pensions [continued)
Merchant Navy Ratings’ Pension Fund {*MNRPF"}

The Merchant Navy Ratings’ Pension Fund {"the MNRFF Scheme”) Is an industry wide multi-employer defined benefit
pension scheme in which sea staff employed by the company have participated. The scheme has a significant funding
deficit and has been closed to further benefit accrual.

The Company, which is no longer current employer in the MNRPF, had settled their stalutory debt obligation and were
not considered {o have any legal obligation with respect io the on-geing deficit in the fund, However, following a legal
challenge, by Stenha Line Limited, the High Court decided that the Trustees could require all employers that had ever
pariicipated in the scheme to make contributions to fund the deficit. Although the Company appealed {he decision, it was
not overturned.

The most recent formal actuarial vatuation was cairied out as at 31 March 2014. The Gompany's deficit contributions
arising from this valuation totalled £25 million {(equating to 7.0% share of the net deficit). The contributions due to the
Scheme will be paid over the period to 31 October 2022, Deficit contributions of £8.2 million were paid into the Scheme
in 2016. The Company’s aggregated oulstanding contributicns from these valuations are payable as follows: 2017 to
2022 £3.5 million per annum

The Trustee set the payment terms for each parlicipating employer in accordance with the Trustee's Contribution
Collection Policy which includes credit vetting.

The amounis recognised in the balance sheet are as foflows

SR e R e T T D T T . SR8 o ST 2015
Present value of obligallens {1,637.7) (1,444.5)
Fair value of plan assals 1,462.7 1.356.4
Nel Fability deficit (175.0) {88.1)
Related deferred tax asset - -
Net hability {175.0) (88.1)
Amounts in the balance sheet
Non-currert Liabiliffes (175.0) (88.1)

. Net liability {1750 (88.1)

The deferred pension benefit schemes of GBP £175 million (2015: £88 million) is in respect of the total Company schemes
shown on page 93,

The re-measurements of the net deflned benefit liabliity recognised In the statement of other comprehensive
income is as fallows:

I T v P . C2016 CUELL T L 2046
Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised b the yaar {220.1) {45.1)
Relurn on plan assets lesser/ (greater) than the discount rate 137 304
Change In share in multi-employer scheme {0.9) {0.8)
Movement in minimum funding liability 6.2 12.8
{101.1) 6.5
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Notes to the Company financial statement {continued)

N. Pensions {(continued)

The penslon costs for defined benefit schemes are as follows:

S R ] B CY26° 0 - - 2018
Cuirent service cost - (0.3)
Gain due to selllements/curtaitments . 0.6
Administration costs (2.3) (2.5)
Total charge to operating profit (2.3} {2.2)
Net Interest on net defined benefit liabllity/{asset) (2.9) (3.0)
Tota! expenses racognised in the income statement (5.2) (5.2)

Actuarial valuations and assumptions

The latest valuations of the defined benefit schemes have been updated to 31 December 2016 by qualified independent
actuarigs. The principal assumptions are included in the table below. The assumptions used by the actuaries are the best
estimates chosen from a range of possible acluarial assumptions, which, due o the timescale covered, may not
necessarily be borns out in practice.

_PsOUKSchams  WoPEsehame ST

T mE Wk 075 2015,

Discountratss TR TaTh  2E0h5T0% 2e6% 370%

Discount rates - Bulk Annuity Asset 2.40% 3.50% nfa n/a nfa n/a

Expected rates of salary increases * nfa nfa nfa nfa nfa n/a
Pension increases:

- Deferment 3.00% 2.80% 2.50% 220% 2.50% 2.20%

- Payment 3.00% 2.80% 3.40% 3.10% 3.40% 3.10%

inflation 3.50% 3.20% 3.60% 3.20% 3.50% 3.20%

* The P&0 UK Scheme and MNOPF were closed to future accrual as at 31 December 2016, so future pay increases is not
refevant,
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

N. Pensions (continued)

The assumptions for pensioner longevity under both the P&O UK scheme and the MNOPF scheme are based on an
analysis of pensioner death trends under the respective schemes over many years.

The schemes' sirategic asset alfocations across the seclors of the main asset classes are:

. PROUKSchema | MNOPFscname  cWATPE  Yothar
T gmwea - D o Emilon . -£mbion . -l £wiliion

2016
Equities 350.4 32.3 8.9 4006
Bonds 1563.1 46.8 42.4 2423
Other 222 - - 22.2
Value of insured pensioner liabllity 7978 } 797.6
1,332.3 78.4 51.3 1,462.7

2016
Equites 3026 404 55 2485
Bonds 1181 69.4 204 208.9
Cther 205 . 10.2 30.7
Value of insured pensioner liability 768.3 - - 768.3
1,210.6 109.8 36.1 1,356.4

With the exception of the insured pensioner liability alt matarial invesiments have quoted prices in active markets.

For illustration, the life expectancies for the two schemes at age 65 now and In the future are detailed in the table below.

. Male 7 Femdle - ..
Age 65in
Age 85 now Age 65."? 20 Age 65 20 years'
years' time now .
time
2018
P&O UK schame 223 24.6 24.3 26.6
MNRPF scheme 20.9 236 26.4 2941
MNOPF scheme 23.0 26.9 264 29.2
2015
P&O UK scheme 234 26.5 258 28.9
MNRPF schemea 20.7 233 26.1 288
MNOPF scheme 227 25.6 26.3 293

At 31 December 2016 the weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation was 17.3 years (2014: 15.8 years).
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

N. Pensions (continued)

Reconciliation of the opening and closing present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of schems assels for
the period ended 31 December 2016:

£ mitkon
P&OUK ééhéme ) MNOPFSchame o s:,:::;: - - Tolal _

Present value of obligation at 1 January 2016 (1,262.8) {(111.3) {51.1) (1,426.2)
Curent service cost _ - - R
Interast cost on Defined Benefit Obligation (45.5) a1 (1.9 611
Actuarial gain/{loss) - experience 1.9 0.1 03 223
Actuarial gain/loss) - demographic assumplions 51.9 1.0 R 529
Actuarial gain/{loss) - financial assumptions (261.8) (22.9) {10.6) {295.3)
Galn/(Loss) due 1o change in share ; (2.5) . (2.5)
Actual benefit paid 67.6 5.0 23 74.9
Prezent value of abligation at 3t December 2018 {4,428.7) {134.3) (61.0) (1,624.0)
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 2016 1,210.5 108.8 361 1,356.4
Interest income on assets 437 3.7 14 48.8
Return on plan assels (greaterpess than the discount rate 138.9 (34.7) 9.5 113.7
Actual employer contributions 84 27 ) 19.3
Aclual benefit pald (67.6) {5.0) (2.3) (74.9)
Gain/(Loss) due to change in share R 2.0 (1.2) 1.7
Administration costs Incurred during peried (1.6) {0.3) (0.4) 2.3
Fair valus of schema assots at

31 Docember 2016 1,332.3 781 51.3 1,462.7
Irrecoverable surplus at 1 Januvary 2016 . {14.5) (4.8) {19.3)
Interest cost onirrecoverable surplus _ {0.5) {0.1) (0.6}
Change In irrecoverable surplus _ 6.4 ©.2) 6.2
Irrecoverable surplus at 31 December 2016 . {8.5) (6.1) (127)
Defined benofit schemes net llablllties at 31 December

2016 {36.4) {63.8) {14.8) 176.0)
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

N. Pensions (continued)

Reconciliation of the opening and closing present value of defined benefit obligations and fair value of scheme assets for
the perfod ended 31 December 2015:

£milion
ps.ouk éa;'hemg " MNOPF éf‘%“-eme s“':::::': - Téli:l_' _

Present value of obligation at 1 January 2016 {1,328.6) (117.6) {63.5) {1,499.7}
Current service cost 0.3 - - (0.3}
Interest cost on Defined Benefit Obligation (46.6) 3.8) 1.9 (52.3)
Past seivice cost - amendments/curtaiiments (0.2 R . 0.2}
Setllement of liabilities 9.0 - - 8.0
Acluarial galn/{loss) - experience 233 4.0 {1.5) 25.8
Actuarial gaini(loss) - demegraphic assumplions B _ 08 08
Actuarial gain/(loss}) - finandal assumptions 166 12 0.7 185
Gain/{L oss} due to change in share ; - 2.4 2.4
Actual benefil paid 64.0 4.9 1.9 70.8
Presant value of obligatlon at 31 December 20156 (1,262.8) (111.3) (51.0) {1,425.2)
Fair value of scheme assets at 1 January 2015 1,274.9 102.6 33.2 1,410.7
Interest income on assels 448 3.4 13 49.5
Return on plan assets (greater)/less then the discount rate (43.7) 3.4 1.4 {39.5)
Actual employer contributions 8.6 5.7 4.5 18.8
Actual benefit paid (64.0} (4.7 (1.9) (70.6)
Galnift oss) due to change In share . - (1.8} (1.8)
Setfement (8.4) - - (8.4)
Administration costs incurred during perlod (.7 (0.3) (0.3) (2.3)
Falr value of schome assets at
31 Doecember 2016 1,210.8 109.8 36.1 1,356.4
Irrecoverable surplus at 1 January 2016 . (6.3) . (6.3
Interest cost on ircecoverable surplus R 0.2) - ©.2)
Change in lrrecoverable surplus . (6.0) 4.8) (12.8)
Irrecoverable surplus at 31 December 2016 . {14.5) {4.8) (19.3)
Defined benefit schemes net Habllitles at 31 Dacembar
2018 {62.3} (16.0) {19.8) (88.1}
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N. Pensions (continued}

The below table shows the mavement in minimum funding liability:-

£ mition

" 2016 " 2015

Mintmum funding liabilily as on 1 lanuary (19.3) (6.3)
Interest cost on minimum funding liability (0.6} 0.2)
Actuartal movement during the year 6.2 (12.8)
Effect of movement In exchange rates ) ) . - -
_Minimum funding liabllity as on 31 Dacember - - : CA{18T) - {103)

It is anticipated that the company will make the following cash contributions to the pension schemes in 2017

£ million

“PEOUK - TNNOPE T MNRPF - Ty
o= Scheme -~ . Scheme . Schéme .-~ L7 -
Penélonsbhema'conlrfbutions- — ‘ - — 7.717 39 30 14.0
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

0. Commitments

The commitment during the following year in respect of non-canceliable operating leases is as lollows:

£ million
- C . ‘ . . . , Land and buildings -
Lease explring: s : IR _2616 T L2018
Within ona year 0.9 1.1
Between one and five years 3z 43
Qver five years 4.6 54
9.1 10.8

P. Contingent liabilities

The company has a contingent liability in respect of payment guarantees amounling to nil (2015: £9.6 million}.

Q. Controlling party
Uitimate holding company

in the opinion of the directors the ultimate controlling parent undertaking as at 31 December 2015 was Port & Free Zone
World FZE, which owns 80.45% of DP Waorld Limited. Port & Free Zone World FZE is a wholly owned subsidiary of Dubai
World Corporation, which is the ultimate parenl company of the Company, but which does not exert control over the
Company.

The largest Company of companies for which consclidated financial statements are prepared and in which the company is
consolidated Is DP World Limited. DP World Limited is the intermediate holding company. DP World Limited has 19.65% of
its shares traded on the NASDAQ Dubai. DP World Limited was further admitied to trade on the London Stock Exchange
wilh effect from 1 June 2011 and voluntarily dalisted from the London Stock Exchange on 21 January 2015.
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Notes to the Company financial statement {continued)

R. Related undertakings

The Company's ownership in various related undertakings has been disclosed in note F. In accordance with section 409 of
the companies Act 2008, a fuli list of related undertakings, the country of incorporation, percenlage of share capital and
registered address owned by the Group as at 31 December 2016 Is disclosed below.

Name Counlry of Percentage Class of Registered Address
Incorporation  of share shares
capital
owned by
the Group
Abbolt & Goldman United 99% Ordinary 16 Palace Slreet, London, SW1E
Kingdom shares 5JG, United Kingdom
Aberlour Holding Company, Inc. Philippines 16% Preferred 7th Fioor, ST Holdings Center, 6764
shares Ayala Avenue, Makati Cily, Metro
Manila, Philippines
Anderson Hughes Ply Ltd Australia 94% OrdInary Level 3, 98 Queensbridge Street,
shares Southbank VIC 3006, Australia
Antwerp Fast N.V. Belglum 100.00% Ordinary Nieuwe Westweg haven 742, 2040
shares Antwerpen, Belgium
Antwerp Gateway NV Belglum 60% Calegory N Nieuwa Westweg haven 742, 2040
shares and P Antwerpen, Belglum
shares
Ascot SAS France 25% Qrdinary Av Du 18ame Port, 76600, Le Havre,
shares France
Astan Terminals, Inc Philippines 41.72% Common A. Bonifacio Drive., Port Area,
shares Manila, 1018, Philippines
ATl Batangas, Inc Philippines 41.72% Common Port of Balangas, Sta. Clara,
shares Batangas City, 4200, Philippines
ATl Holdings, Inc. Philippines 100% Common 3rd Floor, SSHG Law Cenlre, 105
shares Paseo de Roxas, Makatl City,
Philippines
AWH Pty Ltd Australia 1.57% Ordinary Lara Wool Complex, Forest Road,
shares Lara VIC 3212, Auslralia
Basswick Pty Limited Auslralia 1060% Ordinary Level 2t, 400 George Street, Sydney
shares NSW 2000, Australia
Beaufort Insurance Company Limited United 100% Ordinary 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
Kingdom shares and 5XQ, United Kingdom
Cumulative
Preference
shares
Bengal Por Private Limited India 44.50% Ordinary Sagar Eslale, 4th Floor, 2,, Clive

Equity shares Ghat Street,, Kolkata, West Bengal,
700001, India

British India Steam Navigation Company  United 100% Ordinary 16 Palace Street, London, SWHE
Limited Kingdom shates 5JQ, United Kingdom
Carpentaria Shipping Services Pty L.1d Australia 47.00% QOrdinary-A Level 3, 98 Queensbridge Street,
shares Southbank VIC 3008, Australia
Chennai Container Terminal Pvi. Lid. India 100% Ondinary Darabshaw House, Level 1,
shares Naroltamy Morarji Road, Baliard
Estate, Mumbai, Maharashtra,
400001, India
Community Network Services Limited United 100% Qrdinary 16 Palace Sireet, London, SW1E
Kingdom shares 5.JQ, United Kingdom
Container Ralf Road Services Pvi. Lid. India 100% Crdinary Darabshaw House, Level §,

Equity shares Naroitam Morarji Road, Ballard
Estate, Mumbal, Maharashtra,
400001, India
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R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name

Daven Holdings, Inc

DF World (Canada) Inc.

DP Wordd (Fremantte) Limited

DP World (POSN) B.V.

DP World (SA) Ply Ltd

DP World Antwerp Contalner Services
NV

DP World Antwerp Cusloms Desk NV
DF World Antwerp Holding N.V.

DP World Antwerp Terminals N.V.

DP World ANZ Ports {Australia) Ply
Limited

DP World Auslralia (Finance) Piy Ltd
DP Woild Australia {Holding} Pty Lid

DP World Australia (investments) Ply Ltd

DP World Australia (POAL) Ply Ltd

DP World Australia (POSN) Pty Ltd
DP World Australia Limited
DP Werld Blue B.V

DP World Brisbane Pty Limited

Country of
Incorporation

Philippines

Canada

Australia

Nelherands
Australia
Belglum
Belgium
Balgium
Belgium
Australia
Auslralia
Australia
Australia

Auslralia

Australia
Australia
Nethersnds

Australia

Percentage
of share
capital
owned by
the Group

8%

100%

3.15%

100%
3.15%
100%
50%
100%
100%
100%
3.15%
3.15%
100%

100%

100%
3.15%
100%

3.15%

98

Class of
shares

Preferred
shares

Ordinary
shares
Class A and
class B
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary-B
shares
Ordinary
shares
Crdinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Osdinary
sharas
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ciass A, Class
B and class B
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares

Registered Address

7ih Floor, STI Holdings Center, 6764
Ayala Avenue, Makatf City, Metro
Manila, Philippines

2900 - 550 Burrard Street,
Vancouver BC VGG 0A3, Canada
Level 21, 400 George Strest, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australia

Albert Plesmanweg 43G, 3088GB,
Rotterdam, Netherlands

As per physical address

Nieuws Wastweag Kaal 742, 2040
Antweip, Belgium

Nieuwe Weslweg haven 742, 2040
Antwarpan, Belglum

Nieuwe Westweg haven 742, 2040
Antwerpen, Belgium

Nieuws Westweg Kaai 742, 2040
Anhwerp, Belgium

Level 21, 400 George Straa!, Sydney
NSW 2000, Auslralia

Lavel 21, 400 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australla

tevel 21, 400 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australla

Lavel 21, 400 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australla

Level 21, 400 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, Austraffa

Level 21, 400 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, Auslsalta

Level 21, 400 George Strest, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australia

Albert Plesmanweg 43G, 3088GB,
Rotlerdam, Netherlands

Level 21, 400 Geoorge Siraat, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australia
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R. Related undertakings (continued)

Nama

DP World Callao S.R.L.

OP World Canada B.V.

DP World Germargheim BV,

DP World Investments FZE

DP World Liege NV

DP World Limited

DP Warld Logistics Europe GmbH
DP World Mapulg, SA

DP World Maritime B.V.

DP World Melbourne Limited

DP World Overseas Pty Limited

DP Word Prince Rupert ing.

DP World Properties {Australia) Ply
Limited

DP Worid Pvt. Lid.

DP World Red B.V

DP World Salgon Holdings Limiled

DP World Sokhna FZE

DP World Saint John, Inc.

Country of
Incorporation

Feru

Nelherlands
Nelherlands
United Arab

Emirates
Belgium

Unlted
Kingdom
Garmany
Mozambique
Nethedands

Australia

Australia

Canada
Auslralia

India

Netherands
Virgln Islands,
British

United Arab
Emirates

Canada

Percentage
of share
capital
owned by
the Group
100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
100%
60%
100%
3.15%

100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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Class of
shares

Parliclpacianes
shares

Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Class A, Class
Bandclass B
Qrdinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
sharas
Ordinary-B
shares
Ordinary
shares

Class A
Ondinary
sharas
Common
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary Equity
shares

Ordinary
shares
Crdinary
shares

Ordinary
shares
Common
shares

Registered Addross

DP World Calfao S.R.L., Terminal
Portuario Muelle Sur, Avenida Manco
Capac 113, Callao 1, Peru

Atbert Plesmanweg 43G, 3088GB,
Rotterdam, Netherlands
Smirnoffweg 3, PO Box 59138, 3088
HE Rotterdam, 3008 PC
Netherdands, Nelherdands

P.0O. Box 17000, Dubal, United Arab
Emirates

Rue de ka Resistance SN, 4100
SERAING, Belglum

16 Palace Sfreel, London, SWIE
£JQ, United Kingdom
SchanzenstraBe 102, 40540
Dusseldorf, Germany

Terminal de Contentores, Porto de
Maputo, Maputo, Mozambigque

Albert Plesmanweg 430G, 3088GB,
Rotterdam, Nethedands

Level 21, 400 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australia

Level 21, 400 George Street, Sydney
MNSW 2000, Australia

2900 - 650 Bufrard Street,
Vancouver BC VBC 0A3, Canada
Level 21, 400 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australia

Darabshaw House, Level 1,
Naroilam Morarfi Road, Ballard
Estate, Mumbal, Maharashtra,
400001, India

Albert Plesmanwag 43G, 3088GB,
Rotterdam, Nelherlands

Belmonl Chambers, PO Box 3443,
Road Town, Torlola, British Virgin
Islands

P.0. Box 17000, Dubal, United Arab
Emirates

570 Queen Streat Suite 600,
Fredericton NB E3B 6726, Canada




Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name Country of Percentage Class of Registersd Address
Incorporation of share shares
capital
owned by
the Group
DP World Sydney Limiled Australia 3.15% Ordinary Level 21, 400 Georgs Street, Sydney
shares NSW 2000, Auslralia
Easlern Gateway Terminals Private India 68.80% Ordinary Darabshaw House, Level 1,
Limited Equity shares Narottam Morarji Road, Ballard
Estale, Mumbal, Maharashtra,
400001, India
Eurofos SARL France 50% Crdinary Secteur Graveleau , Termingl
shares Contenaurs , Darse 2, 13270, FOS
SUR MER/PORT SAINT LOUIS,
France
Europe Atlantique Terminal SA France 32.49% Ordinary Av Du 16eme Por, 76600, Le Havre,
shares France
European Femrles Limited United 100% Ordinary 16 Palace Sireel, London, SWIE
Kingdom shares §JQ, United Kingdom
Exper Terminal Services Limited Cyprus 50% Ordinary 27 Gregory Afxentiolu Street,
shares Larnaca, Cyprus
Fricue Ply LimHed Australia 100% Crdinary Level 21, 400 George Streel, Sydney
sharas HSW 2000, Australia
Fritex Pty Limited Australia 100% Ordinary Level 21, 400 George Streel, Sydnay
shares NSW 2000, Auslralia
Gamac GIE France 50% Ordinary Quai De L'Eurape, 76600, La Havre,
shares France
Generale De Manutention Porluaira France 50% Ordinary Av Du 18eme Port, 76600, Le Havre,
shares France
Glebal Container Services NV Belgium 100% Qrdinary Nieuwe Westweg Kaal 742, 2040
shases Antwerp, Belglum
Harbourside Holdings Corporalion Philippines 16% Preferred 7th Floor, ST1 Holdings Center, 6764
sharas Ayala Avenue, Makati City, Metro
Manila, Philippines
Havenbedrijf Antverpia NV Belgium 098.73% Ordinary Nieuwe Westweg haven 742, 2040
shares Antwerpen, Belglum
Hindustan Ports Private Limlted India 100% Ordinary Darabshaw House, Lavel 1,
shares Naroltam Mararji Road, Ballard

Estate, Mumbal, Maharashtra,
400001, India

India Gateway Terminal Private Limited India 81.63% Drdinary Administration Building, ICTT,,

shares Vallarpadam SE2,, Ernakulam,
kerela, 682504, Indla

Jelelrans SAS France 50% Ordinary Av Du 18ama Port, 76600, Le Havra,
sharas Franca

Laem Chabang International Terminal Thailand 34.50% Ordinary Lasm Chabang Pori, Terminal B,

Co. Ltd shares Sriracha, Chonburi, 20230, Thailand

Laem Chabang Securily Servica Co. Lid.  Thailand 34.50% Ordinary Laem Chabang Porl, Terminal B5,
shares Room No.130 1st Floor, Thupgsukia,

Sriracha, Chonburi, 20230, Thailand
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Notes to the Company financial statement {continued)

R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name

Laing Invesiments Inc.

Lalng Management Company

Liena Pty Lfmited

London Gateway Limited

London Gateway Logistics Limited
London Gateway Park Development
Limited

Londen Galeway Park Limited
Londen Gateway Park Management
Limlted

London Gateway Port Holdings Limited
London Gateway Porl Limiled

Londen Gateway Port Railway Limiled

London Gateway Services Limited

Louis Wolfe and Sons (Vancouver) Ltd.

Mackinnon Mackenzie & Co. of Pakistan
{Private) Limited

Manutention Générale Méditerrangenne
SA

Manutention Terminal Nord

Matthews Holdings Limited

Morray Holdings, Inc.

Country of
Incorparation

United Slates
United Slates
Auslralia

United
Kingdem
United
Kingdem
United
Kingdem
United
Kingdem
United
Kingdom
Unlted
Kingdem
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
Canada

Pakistan

France

France

Bermuda

Philippiaes

Percantage
of share
capltal
owned by
the Group

50%

50%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

50%

50%

100%

16%
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Class of
shares

Cormmon
shaies
GCommon
shares
Qrdinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Qrdinary
shares
Ordinary
sharas
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
sharas
Ordinary
shares
Class A
Common
shares
Crdinary
shares

Ondinary
shares:

Ordinary
shares
Common
shares

Preferred
shares

Repistared Address

55 Waugh Drive, Suite 1111,
Houston TX 77007, United States
§5 Waugh Drive, Suite 1111,
Houston TX 77007, United States
Level 21, 400 George Streel, Sydnay
NSVY 2000, Austrafia

16 Palace Sireet, London, SWiIE
5JQ, United Kingdom

16 Palace Street, London, SWiE
5JQ, United Kingdom

16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JQ, United Kingdom

16 Palace Sfreet, London, SW1E
5JQ, United Kingdom

16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JQ, United Kingdom

16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JQ, United Kingdom

16 Palace Sireat, London, SWHE
5JQ, United Kingdom

16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
540, United Kingdom

16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JQ, United Kingdom

2900 - 550 Burrard Street,
Vancouver BC V8G 0AZ, Canada

3rd Floor Mackinnons Building, , i)
Shundrigar Road, , Karachi, 74000,
Pakislan

Temina! Conteneurs Darse 2
Secteur Graveleau, 13230 Port Saint
Louls du Rhone, France

Ay Du 16eme Port, 76600, Le Havre,
France

Eslera Services (Bermuda) Limited,
Canon's Gourl, 22 Vicleria Slreet, PQ
Box HM 1179, Hamilten, HM EX,
Bermuda

7th Floor, STI Holdings Center, 6764
Ayala Avenue, Makali City, Melro
Manila, Philippines




Naotes to the Company financial statement (continued)

R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name Gountry of Percentage Class of Reglstered Address
incorporation  of share shares

capital

owned by

the Group
Mundra International Container Terminal  India 100% QOrdinary MICT Operation Centre, Navinal,
Private Limited Equity shares New Mundra Por, £.0.Box-8,

Mundra, Gujarat, 370421, India

Navigue — Empresa Mogambicana de Mozambigue 33.85% Ordinary 366 Rua de Bagamoyo, Maputo,
Navegacg&o, SARL shares Mozambique
Network Finanging B.V. Netherlands 10% Ordinary Smimofiwey 3, PO Box 59138, 3088

shares shares HE Rottergam, 3008 PC
Netheriands, Netherands

Nhava Sheva (india) Galeway Terminal India 100% Crdinary Darabshaw House, Level 1, Soarji

Private Limited shares Valtabhdas Marg, Ballard Estate,,
Mumbai, Maharashira, 400038, India

Nhava Sheva International Conlainer India 100% Ordinary Darabshaw Housa, Leval 1,

Terminal Pvi. Ltd. shares Narottam Morarji Road, Ballard
Estate, Mumbal, Maharashtra,
400001, India

P & O Maritime Sarvices (South Africa) Soulh Africa 100% Ordinary ZND FLOOR BLOCK D, THE

(Propriatary) Limited shares BOULEVARD OFFICE PARK,

SEARLE STREET, WOODSTOCK,
7925, South Africa

P&O Bulk Shipping Limlited United 100% Ordinary 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
Kingdom shares 5JQ, United Kingdem
P&O Containers Pakistan (Private) Pakistan 100% Qrdinary Mackinnons Bullding , 1.I.Chundrigar
Limited shares Road, P.O.Box 4679, Karachi,
Pakistan .
P80 Delaware Holdings LLC United States 100% Ordinary The Corposation Trust Company,
shares Corporate Trust Center, 1209

Orange Street, Wilmington,
Delawara, New Castla, 18801,
United States

P30 Dovar {Holgings} Limiled Unlted 100% Ordinary 18 Palace Sireet, London, SW1E
Kingdom sharas §JQ, United Kingdom

P&0O France § A.S. France 100% Ordinary 34, Boulevaid des llafens, 75008,
shares Pans, France

P&Q Garden City Investments B.V. Netheriands 100% Ordinary 16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
shares 51Q, United Kingdom

P&0 Management Services Phils., lnc. Philippines 40% Common 7th Floor, STi Holdings Center, 6764
shares Ayala Avenue, Makati Clty, Metro

Manila, Philippines

P&QO Marilime Holdings (Australia) Pty Australia 100% Ordinary Level 3, 89 Queensbridge Strest,

Limited ehares Southbank VIC 3006, Australia

P&O Marilime Holdings Paraguay S.A. Paraguay 100% Ordinary Avda. Guido Bogglani 5509 ¢/,
shares Procer Arguelio, Asuncion, Paraguay

P&Q Marilima Mozambique SA Mozambique 0.94% Ordinary Praga dos Trabalhadores, Pordo de
shares Maputo, Porta no 6, Armazem B2

{E), Maputo, Mozambigue
P&C Marilime Ocean Sciences Limlted United 50% Ordinary-A 16 Palace Streel, London, SWIE
Kingdom shates 5JQ, United Kingdom

P&O Maritime Services (France) SARL France 100% Ordinary § Rue Pe L'Est, Boulogne

shares Billancourt, France
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

R. Related undertakings {continued)

Name Gountry of Percentage Class of Reglstered Addross
incorporation  of share shares
capltaf
owned by
the Group
PAO Maritime Sevices (freland) Ltd ireland 100% Ordinary Parkmore Business Park West,
shares Galway, Ireland
P&0 Maritime Senices (N2) Limited New Zealand 100% Crdinary Level 6, 110 Symonds Street,
{being wound up} shares Auckland, New Zealand
P&0 Marilime Sesrvices (PNG) Limited Papua New 100% Ordinary Level 3, Pacliic MMI Haus,
Guinea shares Champion Parade, Port Moresby ,
Papua Nevws Guinea
P&Q Marilime Services (Singapore} Pte.  Singapore 100% Ordinary 78 Shenlon Way 12-01 , Singapore,
Lid. shares 079120, Singapore
PA&O Marilima Services (UK) Limited United 100% Ordinary 16 Palace Street, London, SWIE
Kingdom shares 5JQ, United Kingdom
P&O Marilime Services Paraguay S.A. Paraguay % Ordinary Avda. Guldo Boggiani 5508 ¢/,
shares Precer Arguello, Asunclon, Paraguay
P&0 Marilime Services Pty Lig Australia 100% Qrdinary Level 3, 99 Queensbridge Stree!,
shares Soulhbank VIC 3008, Australia
P&O Netherlands B.V. Nelherlands 100% Qrdinary 46 Palace Streat, Eondon, SWHE
sharas 5JQ, United Kingdom
PE&O Overseas Holdings Limitad United i00% Ordinary 16 Palace Sfreet, London, SW1E
Kingdom shares 5JQ, United Kingdom
&0 Pension Funds Investments Limiled  United 100% Ordinary 16 Palace Slreet, London, SWHE
Kingdom shares 5JQ, United Kingdom
P&0 Ports {Chennai) Ltd Mauritius 100% Oudinary 3rd Floor, C-8,, 31 Cybercity Ebene,,
shares Mauritius
P&0O Ports (Kulpl) Pvt Lid Maurifius 100% Ordinary 3rd Floor, C-6,, 31 Cybercily Ebene,,
shares Maurilius
P&O Ports (Mundra) Pvt Ltd Mauritius 100% Ordinary 3rd Floor - C8, 31 Cybercily, Ebene,
shares Mauritius
P&0O Ports L. United 100% Ordinary 16 Palace Sfreef, London, SWI1E
Kingdom shares 5JQ, United Kingdom
P&O Properties Intemational Limited United 100% Ordinary 16 Palace Street, Londan, SW1E
Kingdom shares 5JQ, United Kingdom
P&O Scotllsh Ferries Limited United 100% Ordinary 16 Palace Street, London, SWIE
Kingdom shares 5JQ, United Kingdom
P&O Scottish Ferries Ship Management  United 100% Ordinary Karan Beeson, Computershare
Limited Kingdom shares Investor Services Ple, Lochelde

House, 7 Lochside Avenue,
Edinburgh P, Edinburgh, EH12 8DJ,
United Kingdom
P&O Tankships inves!ments Limited United 100% Qrdinary 16 Palace Street, London, SWIE
Kingdom shares 5JQ, United Kingdam
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Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name

Pacity Investments Pty Limited

Paklex Development, Inc.
Parkway Invastments Parners, LP

Parkway Limited invesiments, lnc.

Partkestref Limited (being wound up)

Pecard Group Holdings, Inc.

Philippine Seapart, Inc

POETS Fleet Management Limited
Portsynargy Projects SA
Portsynergy SAS

Porlus Indico - Sociedade de Servicos
Portuarios Limited

PT Tarminal Pelilkemas Surabaya

PTS Holdings Limlted

Qasim International Comlainer Terminal
Pakistan Limited

Qingdao New Qlanvaan Confainer
Terminal Co., Ltd

Qingdao Qianwan Contalnar Terminal
Co., Lid

Qingdag Qianwan Inteligent Gonlainer
Terminal Co., Lid,

Qingdao Qianvian United Advance
Contalner Terminal Co,, Lid.

Country of
incorporation

Auslralia
Uniled States
Uniled States
Uniled States
United

Kingdom
Philippines

Phllippines

United
Kingdom
France

Frange
United Arab
Ernlrates

indonesia

Mauritivs

Pakistan

China

China

China

China

Percentage
of share
capltal
owned by
the Group
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%

16%

39.80%

100%

50%

50%

48.50%

489%

59.22%

55%

23%

20%

16%

8%

104

Class of
shares

Crdinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares
Class B
Common
shates
Comman
shares

Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Qrdinary
shares
Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
{Saries B)
shares
Ordinary
shares and
redeemable
"A" Qrdinary
shares
Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Qrdinary
shares
Qrdinary
sharas

Registered Address

Level 21, 400 George Streel, Sydnay
NSW 2000, Auslralia

Delaware, Unitad States
Texas, United states

Natianal Raglstered Agents, Inc., 160
Greeniree Diiva, Suite 101, Dover
DE 19904, Uniled States

16 Palace Sireet, London, SWHE
8JQ, United Kingdom

3rd Floor, SSHG Law Centre, 105
Pageo de Roxas, Makati Cily,
Philippines

3rd Floor, SSHG Law Centre, 105
Paseo da Roxas, Makati Cily,
Phllippines

16 Palace Street, London, SWIE
543, United Kingdom

Av Du 16ame Por, 76600, Le Havre,
France

25 Traverse Mardirossian, 13015,
Marselile, France

Clyde & Co, P O Box 112987, Office
102, City Tower 2, Sheikh Zayed
Road, , Dubai, Dubai, United Arab
Emirates

JI. Tanjung Mutiara No. 1, Surabaya,
East Java, 60177, Indonesia

3rd Floor - C6, 31 Cybercily, Ebene,
Mauritius

Berths 5,6 & 7, Marginal Wharves,
Port Muhammed Bin Qasim, Karachl,
Pakistan, 75020, Pakistan

Fenlin 4th Road, Port of Qianwan,
Huangdao, Qingdao, Shangdong
Province, 266500, China

Fenjin 4th Road, Porl of Qianwan,
Huangdao, Qingdag, Shangdong
Province, 266500, China

Qingdao Free Trade Zone, Qingdao,
Shandong Province, China

Qingdao Free Trade Zone, Qingdao,
Shandeng Province, China




Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name

Qingdao Qlanvan United Container
Tarminal Co., Ltd

Remolcadores de Puerto y Altura, S.A.

Saigon Premier Container Terminal

SCT Nominees Limited

SCT Pension Trustees Limited

SG Holdings, Inc

Sociadade de Desenvalvimento do Porto
de Mapute, S5.A.

Societe D'Amenagement De L'interface
Tarrestra Du Port Du Havre SAS

Solenl Conlainer Services Limited

South Asia Logistics Pvt Ltd

South Asia Ports Limited

South Cotabato Integrated Port Services,

Ing.

Southampton Container Terminals
Limiled

Technolagicky Park Brmp a.s.

Temminal de Cabolagem de Mapula
SARL

Terminales Rio de [a Plata S.A.

UK EDI Limiled

Ventress Investments Ply Limited

Country of
incorporation

China

Spain

Vietnam

United
Kingdom
United
Kingdom
Phltippings

Mozambique
France

United
Kingdom
Mauritius

Maurilius
Philippines

United
Kingdom
Czech
Republic
Mozambigue

Argenlina

United
Kingdom
Awuslralia

Percentage
of share
caplial
owned by
the Group

12%

57%

80%

100%
100%

16%

24.74%
17.6%
100%
100%
100%

14.88%
100%

50%

17.31%

55.62%

100%

100%
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Class of
shares

Qrdinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Preferred
shares

C Class
sharas
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Ordinary
shares
Comman
shares
A shares

Ordinary
shares
Qrdinary
shares

Ordinary
shares

Ordinary
sharas
Qrdinary
shares

Reglstored Address

567 TongJiang Road, Qingdaco
Econamic and Technological
Development Zone, Qingdao, China
Muelle de Reus, s/n, Edificio Fruport
~ 43004 Tarragona - Sp, 43004 |
Tamragena, Tarragona, Spain

Ptot C-17 Hiep Phuoc Industrial
Zone, Hiep Phuoc Commune, Nha
Be Distsict, Ho Chi Mioh Cily,
Vietnam

16 Palace Street, London, SWIE
5JQ, United Kingdom

16 Palace Street, London, SW1E
5JQ, Uniled Kingdom

71h Floor, STi Holdings Center, 6764
Ayala Avenue, Makati City, Metro
Manlla, Phitippines

Praca dos Trabathadores, Parto de
Maputo, Maputo, Mezamblque

Av Du téeme Port, 76600, Le Havre,
France

16 Palace Street, London, SWIE
54Q, United Kingdom

ard Floor - C6, 31 Cybercity, Ebene,
Mauritius

3rd Floor, C-8,, 31 Cybercily Ebene,,
Mauritius

Makar Wharf, Gen. Santos Gity,
9500, Phliippines

16 Palace Street, London, SWIE
5JQ, United Kingdom

Purkyiiova 646/107 (budova A), 612
00 Brno, Czech Repubiic

Miértires de Inhaminga, Recinto
Poriuarc — Portdo n® 4, Caixa Postal
145, Maputo, Mozambique

Av. R.S. Castillo y Comodoro Py
s/N®, Puerto Nuevo, Capital Federal,
Buenos Alres, C1104BAL, Argentina
16 Palace Street, Lendon, SWIE
5JC, United Kingdom

Level 21, 400 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australia




Notes to the Company financial statement (continued)

R. Related undertakings (continued)

Name Country of Percentage Class of
Incorporation  of share shares
capital
owned by
the Group
Vipport Belglum 100% Ordinary
shares
Visakha Container Terminal Pvi. 1d. India 26% Ordinary
shares
Waughcal Pty Limited Australia 100% Ordinary
shares
Welbeck Navigation Inc Panama 100% Ordinary
shares
1-Stop Connections Pty Etd Auslralia 1.57% Ordinary
shares

S. Post-Balance Sheet Event

Reogistored Address

Nieuwe Weshveg haven 742, 2040
Antwerpen, Befgium

Godraj Coliseumn, Office No. 801, 8th
Floor, C - Wing, Behind Everard
Nagar,, Off Somalya Hospital Road,
Near Priyadarshinl, Slon (East),
Mumbai, Maharashlra, 400022, India
Level 21, 400 George Street, Sydney
NSW 2000, Australia

Edificio Plaza 2000, Piso 16, Calle
&0, Panama, Panama

Suite 7005, 376 Bay Street, Brighton
Le Sands NSW 2216, Australia

In April 2017 a liability was transferred te the ullimate controlling parent undertaking. See Note 24 (b).
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